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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board") of Tack Fiori International
Group Limited (the “Company"), | present to the shareholders the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 3| March 2013,

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$33.3 million (year ended 31 March 2012: HK$56.5 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 41.0% as compared to the last year. The
consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2013 amounted to approximately HK$126.0 million (profit attributable to
owners of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2012: HK$1,293.8 million).
Loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2013 was approximately HK$1.54 as
compared with eamings per share of approximately HK$35.20 (restated) for the
last year. The Group's overall gross profit margin was approximately 31.0% (year
ended 31 March 2012: 29.8%). Such increase was mainly due to the higher profit
margin arising from the salon and beauty service business in Hong Kong, another
new retail business of the Group established during the year.

Apparel retail business

Turnover of the apparel retail business amounted to approximately HK$25.
million (year ended 31 March 2012: HK$51.4 million), representing a decrease
of approximately 51.2% as compared with the last year and accounting for
approximately 75.4% of the Group's total tumover (2012: 91.0%). As for segment
results, that of the apparel retail business recorded a loss of approximately
HK$58.3 million, representing an increase of approximately 49.5% as compared
with approximately HK$39.0 million of last year. The increase of loss in the
segment result was mainly due to reduction in the recorded turnover from a
downturn in the PRC retail market and raising labor and production costs in the
PRC.

Pharmacy and healthcare product retail business

The Group intends to diversify the Group's retail business by developing
businesses in other retail industries. In November 2012, the Group established a
pharmacy store situated in Hong Kong, which not only provides pharmaceutical
products but also offers a variety of skincare and healthcare products. The
turnover from the pharmacy and healthcare products retail business for the
period ended 31 March 2013 was approximately HK$0.13 million.
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Salon and beauty service business

To further diversify the Group’s retail business and in February 2013, the Group
launched a hair salon with beauty services located in a luxury hotel in Hong Kong.

The turnover arising from salon and beauty services business for the period
ended 31 March 2013 was approximately HK$ 1.7 million.

Luxury goods and accessories retail business

Included in the amount of turnover was approximately HK$6.3 million (year
ended 31 March 2012: HK$5.1 million) generated by the luxury goods and
accessories retail business. This segment recorded a loss in segement result of
approximately HK$13.7 million during the year (2012: HK$12.7 million).

Apparel retail business

Throughout the year, in addition to the remained stagnant of global economic
growth, the China economy was experiencing a slowdown and the overall
retail market environment in China continued to be challenging. The Group
experienced a competitive retail climate, with frequent sales promotions and
discounting, eroded margins throughout the industry as competitors fought to
defend its market share. The continuous raising labor cost and production cost
added pressure on the Group’s retail operation. During the year, the Group has
been continuously improving the retail operation of the existing outlets and will
locate new outlets in non-prime locations to reduce the pressure from increasing
rental costs.

The Group realize that brand differentiation is crucial to consumption markets in
China, with more and more consumers being aware of fashionable apparel with
unique characteristics. Therefore, the Group will continue efforts to broaden
the existing store sales by providing more variety and characteristics of seasonal
products, while refining our retail store network to boost overall competitiveness.
Also, the Group is currently developing e-commerce and will adopt internet
sales channels at TMALL scheduled in the second-half of 2013. Furthermore,
management continues to work on rebuilding the Group's brand image, stabilizing
supplier sources, adoption of more effective cost control scheme to lower the
product cost, expanding the product lines and strengthening the sales staff training
program.
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As of 31 March 2013, the Group established 53 (2012: 29) fashion outlets. These
outlets are located in || provinces in the PRC covering |8 cities such as Beijing,
Guangzhou, Tianjin, Chongging, Shenyang, Wuxi, Xian and Changchun in PRC.
As of 31 May 2013, the Group had established 47 fashion outlets located in 10
provinces in the PRC covering |6 cities.

Salon and beauty service business

During the year, the Group is engaged in another retail business by establishing
a hair salon with beauty services located in a luxury hotel in Hong Kong.
Turnover contributed by this new operating segment since February 2013 was
approximately HK$1.7 million. With over 3,000 square ft with an intimate setting
infused with Parisian charm, complemented with state-of-art equipment, the hair
salon provides professional hair styling services plus a variety of hair, skin, and nail
care services.

Pharmacy and healthcare product retail business

At present, the revenue from this new operating segment is mainly arised from
the sales of skincare and healthcare products. With increasing consciousness on
consumer skincare and healthcare, the Group will continue to launch marketing
activities on skincare and healthcare products by organising professional
skincare and healthcare seminars; providing professional trainings to the sales
and marketing teams in order to enhance their product knowledge and
professionalism; implement different marketing strategies to address specific needs
and features of different markets and hospitals, in order to expedite the growth

of sales and establishing the pharmacy store image in the future.

Luxury goods and accessories retail business

The turnover of luxury goods and accessories retail business during the year
ended 31 March 2013 was approximately HK$6.3 million. With the slow
economic growth in Hong Kong and China, especially in the luxury accessories
products retail industry, the turnover for the same period was slightly decreased
as compared to HK$5. | million, the turover generated by this segment since the
Group acquired this retail group in August 201 |. The Group will continue to put
more efforts on marketing and promoting activities to expedite the growth of the
sales.
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If opportunities arise, the Group will extend the scope of its existing principle

activities, so as to diversify its business scope with a view to broaden the Group's
revenue base and achieve better Shareholders’ return.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group has no bank and other borrowings.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group'’s had net current assets of approximately
HK$93.7 million including cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$52.3
million (2012: net current assets of approximately HK$148.0 million including cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$121.2 million).

On 23 August 2012, the Group effected a capital reorganisation which involved
the share consolidation that every 5 issued and unissued ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each be consolidated into | consolidated share of HK$0.50 each; capital
reduction that paid-up capital of the consolidated shares be cancelled to the
extent of HK$0.49 per consolidated share so as to form a new share of HK$0.01
each; share subdivision that the authorised but unissued consolidated shares of
HK$0.50 each be subdivided into 50 shares of HK$0.01 each: and transfer of the
entire amount of the credit arising from the capital reduction to accumulated
losses of the Company amounted to approximately HK$3 1 1,837,000.

On 7 December 2012, 318,201,240 rights shares of HK$0.01 each were
issued on the basis of one rights share for every two existing shares held on 15
November 2012 at subscription price of HK$0.25 per rights share. On 3 January
2013, 127,280,496 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at placing price
of HK$0.085 per share through a placing agent pursuant to a placing agreement
dated 20 December 2012.
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During the year 31 March 2013, 63,640,248 share options of HK$0.01 each were
exercised at exercise price of HK$0.105.

On 31 January 2013, the Company effected a share consolidation that every
10 issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each be consolidated into |
consolidated share of HK$0.1 each.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group and the Company had no pledge of assets.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had no significant capital expenditure
commitments.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group and the Company had no contingent liabilities.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group employed 364 employees (2012: 306
employees) excluding directors. The Group remunerates its employees based on
their performance, working experience and prevailing market standards. Employee
benefits include medical insurance coverage, mandatory provident fund and share

option scheme.
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Mr. Jackson Ng, who joined the Company in April 2012, resigned from his
position of executive director in April 2013 to pursue his other business
commitments. It has been a pleasure working with him and we wish him all the
best in his future endeavors.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the Board (Mr. Liu On Bong, Peter,
Mr. Au Wai June, Mr. Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth, Mr. Wan Wai Hei, Wesley, Dr.
Leung Shiu Ki, Albet, Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond, Mr. Miu H., Frank, Mr. Robert
James laia Il and Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora) for their dedications and contribution

to the Company.

| would also like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders for their

continuous support and our employees for their dedication and hard work.

By order of the Board
Tack Fiori International Group Limited

Chiu Siu Po
Chairman

27 June 2013
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Chiu Siu Po, aged 64, has been appointed as the Chairman of the Company
in August 2011, is the managing director and chief executive officer of More
Fortune Company Limited, a company principally engaged in import and export
of textile business. Mr. Chiu has over 30 years of experience in textile industry
for the manufacturing, sales and distribution. Mr. Chiu was an independent non-
executive director of Freeman Corporation Limited (presently known as Freeman
Financial Corporation Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 279) and resigned on 22 September 2010. In addition to
his valuable expertise in textile industry, Mr. Chiu also has extensive corporate

and investment experience in both Hong Kong and the PRC markets.

Mr. Liu On Bong, Peter, aged 63, has been appointed as the Vice-Chairman
of the Company in August 2011, is currently group strategy adviser of AMG
Financial Group. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor of Social Science from the University
of Hong Kong, and is a member of Interational Registered Financial Practitioner
and a Certified Management Consultant. Mr. Liu has a wealth of knowledge
on corporate and strategic planning and is also well-versed in management,
transformation, brand building and marketing of consumer products and services.
He has over 25 years of working experience in various multinational corporations,
some of them were in Fortune 500. In public services, he has been the founding
chairman of Hong Kong Auxiliary Police Association and is also an honorary
superintendent of Hong Kong Auxiliary Police Force. Mr. Liu has been appointed
as an executive director of Radford Capital Investment Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, since June
2008.

Mr. Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth, aged 58, has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company in October 201 |, was educated in Canada and has over
20 years experience in retail and distribution businesses. Mr. Chan is responsible
for retail operations of the Group. Mr. Chan was an executive director of the
Company and retired on 7 October 2009. Mr. Chan currently is a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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Mr. Wan Wai Hei, Wesley, aged 52, has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company in November 201 I, holds a Bachelor degree of Science
from University of Massachusetts Boston, USA. Mr. Wan is currently a director
of Anglo-American Traders Ltd, a toys trading and manufacturing company. Mr.
Wan has a wealth of knowledge on import and export trading and has over 25
years' experience in trading and merchandising. Mr. Wan is a committee member
of Guangdong Committee of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, the former President of Hong Kong Automobile Association and
the President of FIA Asian Zone. In public services, Mr. Wan is a committee
member of Road Safety Council, member of Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal Panel,
member of Housing Appeal Board, member of Transport Advisory Committee
and member of Post-Release Suspension Board. He was also the director of Tung
Wah Group of Hospitals from 2008 to 2009.

Mr. Au Wai June, aged 49, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company and a member of Remuneration Committee in August 201 1. Mr. Au
has obtained a Bachelor degree in Arts in Major from University of Windsor,
Canada. He was the managing director of a telecommunication equipment
manufacturing and trading company with more than |6 years of experience and
extensive knowledge in product development, purchasing, production, business
administration and merchandising of both The People’s Republic of China and
overseas market.

12

EREERE 2 RZE——F+—
ABRZERARAINTES HAE
it 8 X 2K + 88 5 K (University of
Massachusetts Boston) 3 82 + B[ o« E 5% &

BAMBREIREERRREFTAR
RAIZEZ - EX4EBBEEEHLAODE
SMEH NESRARBHBERLFL

B-ELERTEARBOGHAEERER
REZE ARAEQAMERARER
AEMBECNREE -RNARREHE

ELALABERLEEERE  EML
#%Z2E89%28 tHZEE(FE)XRE"

XL Du@ﬁtz\a /E\& t'&‘q%%.%/\a
%;g ° E/\—jﬁjﬁj\ﬂzi—? vj-LﬁEFﬁ
BIMGERE= @R -

MEEEE Y9 R-T——FN\A
EZERARAIRTEERFHNEZE S
E - FMAEEEMERESANABEERE
TEM FEXR -BEA-—KEMX
BHEREFNRIZESREE P
EARREMBE R BITIS CERME -
RE SE FBEBENMEIR A4
BICFEBRIET M-



HEEREERRAT
20134 F

Biographical Details of Directors

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki, Albert, aged 63, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in August 201 |. He is also the chairman
of nomination committee and member of audit committee and remuneration
committee. He is currently the Financial and Business Development Consultant
of Beauchamp International Development Limited, which is a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong and is responsible for providing financial and business
development service to various companies. Dr. Leung has |0 years of experience
in accounting and auditing in accounting firms in England from 1977 to 1987.
From 1987 to 1992, he joined Citicorp International Limited as Assistant Vice
President with a major responsibility in corporate finance matters in Hong Kong.
He holds a Doctor degree of Philosophy in Economics from Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics, the People's Republic of China, a Master degree
of Business Administration from Brunel University, England and a Diploma in
Management Studies from The Polytechnic of Central London, England. Dr. Leung
has also passed the final qualifying examinations of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, all in the United
Kingdom. Dr. Leung has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Universe International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, since November 2008 and
Oi Wah Pawnshop Credit Holdings Ltd, a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, since February 2013.

Mr. Robert James laia Il, aged 44, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in August 201 1. He is also the member
of audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee,
was appointed as an Independent non-executive Director and a member of
Audit Committee. Mr. laia is currently an independent non-executive director
of Mascotte Holdings Limited (stock code: 136), which is a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. laia holds a
Bachelor of Arts from Central Connecticut State University in the United States
and has Master degree in Real Estate from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. laia
has over | | years” experience in the real estate and equities market and lived and
worked in Asia for over 20 years, primarily in Seoul and Hong Kong. In addition
to extensive experience in private equity real estate, he also traded Asian equities
at Samsung Securities in Seoul and Societe Generale in New York.
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Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora, aged 38, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in August 201 |. Ms. Lam obtained a Bachelor
Degree in Laws from the University of Hong Kong and further obtained a
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws in 2001. Ms. Lam is a practicing solicitor in Hong
Kong. Ms. Lam joined Messrs. Lam & Co in 2007. She is now a partner of Messrs.
Lam & Co. Ms. Lam is also an independent non-executive director of Forefront
Group Limited (stock code: 885) and Radford Capital Investment Limited (stock
code: 901), both of which are companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond, aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director, a member of Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, and the Chairman of Audit Committee of the Company in August
2011. Mr. Yau has over |6 years of work experience in auditing, accounting,
taxation, company secretarial, corporate finance and financial management, in
both private and listed companies. Mr. Yau is an associate member of both the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yau is also a fellow member of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of Willie International Holdings Limited (stock code: 273) and Chief Executive
Officer of Capital VC Limited (stock code: 2324), all of which are companies
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also as the executive
director of Chinese Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 8009) and as an
independent non-executive director of Chanceton Financial Group Limited
(stock code: 8020) which are a company listed on the GEM Board of The Stock
Exchange. Mr. Yau holds a master degree in Science majoring in Japanese business
studies and bachelor degree in Business Administration majoring in accounting in
the United States of America.
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Mr. Miu H., Frank, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in August 201 1. Mr. Miu holds a Juris Doctor degree
from Harvard Law School and a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and
Accounting from St. John's University of Minnesota. He is a member of the
American Bar Association and the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Apart
from professional experience in law and accounting, he has extensive exposure
to various industries including financial services. Mr. Miu is a former executive
director of Radford Capital Investment Limited (stock code: 901) which is a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
during the period from March 2009 to December 2009 and also during the
period from June 2011 to July 201 1. Mr. Miu is also a former executive director
of Dragonite International Limited (“Dragonite”) (stock code: 329) which is
a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, during the period from April 2010 to May 2010 and a former non-
executive director of Dragonite during the period from May 2010 to July 201 1.
Mr. Miu is currently an independent non-executive director of Mascotte Holdings
Limited (stock code: 136), Willie International Holdings Limited (stock code:
273) and Freeman Financial Corporation Limited (stock code: 279), all of which
are companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Aside from directorships in the aforesaid public companies listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, he is also an independent non-executive director
of Duoyuan Global Water Inc,, a public company listed on New York Stock
Exchange.

EEEEFE

BEXE 4 RZT——FNAR
EZEARARBIBIYENTES B %
HE R R K B B B Juris Doctor /% 2 B (i
FARGHEMNENBAELERSEHX
ETEB -KAEZHEMBEEERE
Bafiegsmiree8 -HAARAE
EEeBEREE KRERRGHEEL
BN BEATHMZEEBAN(BES
BRE)MEAELEELR BRAECHR
ZENFZAZE_ZTNF+_AKH
—E-—FR AE_E——FLAHA
BEABARSMBRARIER LMK
REAREERAB(RHAST 9012
WITEE SH-_Z—ZTFNAE-Z
—SERACHEREABHERIMAER
AEIEREMZE2EBRRERAB(2
BlOBRORFE 39 Z2HTEERAC
E-ZFRAZ-_ZE——F+AHES
BZHPTES BEERBASHE
SEBRRA (RO 136)  BAE
BERERABRMAS 273 KRE
PEERAERABRORT 279 2%
VYRATES Z=FXL2aEEEY
BRGMERARIERLETAR - KRE
R EBRI EMARRRETES
BB BABBOEFRIMLETR
RABZTRYKBERRA 2B
HITES o

15



TACK FIORI INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2013

Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

The board of Directors (the “Board") submits their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013,

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The Group is
principally engaged in apparel retail business in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") and luxury goods and accessories retail business (watches, audio
equipments and products and other accessories, sale of crystal gemming service
and products) in Hong Kong and PRC, salon and beauty services business and
pharmacy and healthcare products retail business in Hong Kong.

In November 2012, the Company established a pharmacy store which provides
healthcare consultation services and healthcare products. In February 2013, the
Company further diversified its retail business by launching a salon with beauty
services located in a luxury hotel in Hong Kong. Details of the principal activities
and other particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on page 33.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 35 and section
headed “Information about the Financial Position of the Company” respectively.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page |06.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note |9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Details of the movements in trademark of the Group during the year are set out
in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during
the year are set out in notes 27 and 28 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the vyear, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the vear.

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chiu Siu Po (Chairman)

Mr. Liu On Bong, Peter (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth

Mr. Wan Wai Hei, Wesley

Mr. Au Wai June

Mr. Ng Jackson (appointed on 16 April 2012 and resigned on 7 April 2013)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki, Albert

Mr. Robert James laia Il

Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora

Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

Mr. Miu H., Frank

In accordance with 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the Company, Dr.
Leung Shiu Ki, Albert, Mr. Robert James laia Il, and Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond,
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election at that meeting.
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The Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting do not have service contracts which are not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

As at 3| March 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO™)), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model

Code"), were as follows:

(@) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company as at
31 March 2013:

REERRBFAGRERERBREETL
B VEIJUARAAAIR—FALDN
ERBORERERINME L ZREEL -

R-_E—=ZF=ZA=+—H EFRKAK
NEIFETHRABRAR B AN
B(EEABFLHERI(RFRBE
HE1)EXVE) 2B - BERD RESH
FHEERLBRAAARERSFZLHE
EHEEFECEEMABRELD
ﬂAE%Lﬂﬁ%X%mH SRR
EFRDENSRARRBIM ER
RREBWT

@ R-B-Z=ZF=A=1+-H'RX
ARBREEIEIZEBRZ
BEMT:

Approximate

Number of ordinary percentage
Name of Director Capacity shares held of shareholding
EEnE 54 FREERHE REBNEI L
Au Wai June Beneficial owner
fE & ExfiAA 33,120 0.03%
Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth Beneficial owner
BRI ExlAA 6,000 001%
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(b)

Share options

(b) Bk

Number of
options and
underlying shares
held (note)

P ¥ B8 IR 18
RHEBEKRGHE

Approximate
percentage
of shareholding

(Fff ) BESNED L

Name of Director Capacity
EEnA )

Chiu Siu Po Beneficial owner
K EaBEAA
Liu On Bong, Peter Beneficial owner
Bz ExEAA
Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth Beneficial owner
B2 s ExEEAA

200,000 02%
200,000 02%
1,000,000 0.9%

Note: The options granted have not been vested as at 31 March 2013.

Save as disclosed above and in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements,
at no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.
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As at 31 March 2013, the following interests and short positions of 5% or more
of the issued share capital and underlying shares of the Company (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) were recorded in the register of
interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:

R_E—=ZF=A=+—H ®EARF
REEFLAERIEDBHEAFEL
BaBaMmas UTALT(EHES
FARAEBTRAB)RALRRARD#
TR RABRARR D 5% FA L 2 s RUR R

Long position jraay -y
Approximate
Number of percentage
ordinary  of shareholding
Name Capacity shares held RESLD
=1 BHEME FEEBRAE B
Fidelitycorp Limited (note 1) (B 3E 1) Interest of controlled corporation
REEE D 17,500,000 15.28%
Moon Light Investments Group Limited Interest of controlled corporation
(note 1) (FRFEET) RErEz#R 17,500,000 15.28%
Radford Developments Limited Beneficial owner
(note 1) (BT 1) ERBEAA 17,500,000 15.28%
Note: B 3

(1) Radford Developments Limited is wholly-owned by Moon Light Investments Group Limited,
which in tumn is wholly-owned by Moon Light Trust. Fidelitycorp Limited is the trustee for
Moon Light Trust. Moon Light Investments Group Limited and Fidelitycorp Limited are
therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held by Radford Developments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, no person, other than the
Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out herein this report, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong to all
staff. Under the MPF Scheme, employer and employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income. The
employees of the Group's subsidiaries the PRC are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the government of the PRC. Details
of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group seeks to generate profits in its core businesses through the efficient
employment of treasury activities. Treasury activities, if and when undertaken by
the Group, aims to enhance the return on surplus cash and to assist those core
businesses to run smoothly. Efficient management of surplus cash is achieved by

conducting short-term treasury activities when opportunities arise.

All subsidiaries should comply with the Group's treasury objective and policy.
The Group has designated subsidiaries to carry out certain short-term treasury
activities including securities investment and money lending activities. The
investment securities activities and money lending activities will only be conducted
after having considered the actual working capital needs of the Group. Both the
treasury activities and the investment policy are subjected to review from time to
time.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group's securities portfolio was valued at
HK$29,480,000 and the Group did not have any outstanding loan receivable.

As the deposit rate offered by licensed bank in Hong Kong is minimal, the Group
will continue, in the ordinary course of business of the Group, to use its surplus
cash to conduct treasury activities if and when opportunities arise. The Group
foresees potentially attractive retum can be generated from the treasury activities.
The Group will include securities investments and money lending as its principal
activities to broaden the Group's revenue base and achieve better Shareholders'
retumn.
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No largest customer or the five largest customers for the operation of the Group,
and therefore such information were not presented.

For the year, the percentages of the Group’s purchases, attributable to its largest
supplier and five largest suppliers were 17% and 62% respectively.

Save as aforementioned, at no time during the year did a director, an associate
of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors of the Company owned more than 5% of the Company's issued share
capital) have any material interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
of the Company, or the laws of Hong Kong, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year since

its resumption of trading.

Details of events after the reporting period are set on in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2013 were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants. The consolidated financial statements of the Company for each
of the two vears ended 31 March 2012 were audited by Hopkins CPA Limited,
Certified Public Accountants. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Tack Fiori International Group Limited

Chiu Siu Po
Chairman

27 June 2013
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The Company's code on corporate governance practices was adopted by
reference to the provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “CG Code").

None of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) is aware of any
information which would reasonably indicate that, during the year ended 3|
March 2013 (the “Year”), the Company is not, or was not in compliance with
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code on Corporate
Governance Practices”) as set out in Appendix |4 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) which were in force during the Year, except that the Independent Non-
executive Directors were not appointed for specific term.

In accordance with the Provision 84 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall be retired from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years.

The Board will continue to review and recommend such steps as appropriate in a

timely manner in order to comply with the requirements of the CG Code.

The Company has complied with the requirements for director’s securities
transactions stated in the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) in Appendix |10 of the Listing Rules. Upon
enquiry by the Company, all Directors of the Company has confirmed that they

have complied with the requirements as set out in the Model Code for the Year.
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The Board comprises 10 members as at the date of this report and their positions
are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chiu Siu Po (Chairman)

Mr. Liu On Bong, Peter (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth

Mr. Wan Wai Hei, Wesley

Mr. Au Wai June

Mr. Ng Jackson (appointed on 16 April 2012 and resigned on 7 April 201 3)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki, Albert

Mr. Robert James laia Il

Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora

Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

Mr. Miu H., Frank

The Board assumes responsibility for the leadership and control of the Company
and its members are collectively responsible for promoting the business of the
Company by formulating the Group’s overall strategies and policies, approving
the business plans, evaluating the performance of the Group in pursuit of the
Group's overall strategy objectives and overseeing the management of the Group.
The Board has established three committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee. The management of
the Group is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group, which
implements the business strategies and plans formulated and approved by the
Board. Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Biographies details of Directors” of this annual report.

All Directors of the Company have acted in good faith for the best interests of
the Company and the stakeholders of the Company. Other than the statutory
duties imposed on each of them, all of the Directors have exercised due care
in monitoring the corporate matters of the Company and have provided grave
concem, sufficient time and attention to all the significant issues and affairs of the
Group.

For the sake of transparency and independency of the management, the role
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Chiu Siu Po is the Chairman of the Board
and there was no chief executive officer appointed by the Company but the
day-to-day management of the Group was led by Mr. Liu On Bong, Peter, Vice
Chairman of the Board during the Year.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation to the Company conceming his/her independence pursuant to the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are considered to be independent.

Moreover, under the code provision A6.7 of the CG Code, Independent Non-
executive Directors and other Non-executive Directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of members. For the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 September 2012, there was
one Independent Non-executive Director was unable to attend due to his other
business engagements. For the extraordinary general meetings of the Company
held on 23 May 2012, 18 September 2012, 30 January 2013 and 25 March 2013,
two Independent Non-executive Directors, one Independent Non-executive
Directors, two Independent Non-executive Directors and two Independent
Non-executive Directors respectively were unable to attend due to their other
business engagements. The Company considers there was not constitute a
deviation from the code provision A.6.7 in the CG Code as there was already
a majority of Independent Non-executive Directors present at the meeting to
ensure a balanced understanding of the views of the shareholders.

The Board held 8 full board meetings during the Year. Details of the attendance
of the Board members are as follows:

XBUFATELCRELTRAIBA
REMELFERR  BARE2BUED
ARRRREBILFATESFHNA

MR RIS BEMEFEBL S 02 K3l
ARERBULAL

BEAN - BIR B EE AT RITRE X EALT
G BUFRTESREMPENPTES
AHREBRRAGUZETHRRRECER
RZBE—ZFARZ+HBEETHAR
ARFREFRE —LBUFNTES
AEMABmMAGELE RZT—ZF
RA-+=H ZE—=—FhAA+NH"
ZE—=f—-A=tHRZE—Z=%=
AZTRARTHARREREFINAE
DAEMBBUENTESE — BB
HITES MEBUFRATEZLW
BEIUFRITESAHEMABMAELRE ©
ARARB HARABLIBILIENTE
EEHEEBSEUERZATHRE
ZER ABTTEXRERECEXELRT
AISFRINE ST AT IR ©

EZERFRETT\REREFAE -
EXEREBZHRFROT

Executive Directors Attendance HITES HE®
Mr. Chiu Siu Po (Chairman) 418  HPREE(EE) 4/8
Mr. Liu On Bong, Peter (Vice Chairman) 18 BRAEEEFE) /18
Mr. Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth 78 BRESREAE 7/8
Mr. Wan Wai Hei, Wesley 88 EHELE 8/8
Mr. Au Wai June 418 FREELE 4/8
Mr. Ng Jackson 68 RBEBELE 6/8
(appointed on 16 April 2012 and resigned on 7 April 2013) (RZZ—ZFMA+ BE

ZE BR-Z—=FNA

T HEE)
Independent Non-executive Directors Attendance  BUFHTEE 2
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki, Albert 78 RIEEL 718
Mr. Robert James laia |l 6/8 Robert James laia Il 5t 4 6/8
Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora 4/8 N 4/8
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond 8/8  HBEHALHE 8/8
Mr. Miu H, Frank 58  BERE 5/8
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Save for regular board meetings held during the year ended 31 March
2013, meetings of the Directors were held to discuss and transact other
special businesses. The Board members are provided with appropriate and
sufficient information in a timely manner to keep abreast of the Group's latest
developments. All businesses transacted at the board meetings are properly
documented and recorded.

Each newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive and formal induction
to ensure that he/she has an appropriate understanding of (i) the business and
operations of the Group; (i) his/her responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements; (iii) the corporate governance
code of the Company and (iv) the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory and
regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for directors will
be arranged at the expenses of the Company whenever necessary. The Directors
are committed to complying with code provision A.6.5 of the new CG Code on
Directors' training effective from | April 2012. All Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills and provided their training records for the Year to the Company.

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) in August 201 |. Remuneration Committee is chaired by an
independent non-executive director. The members of the Remuneration
Committee comprise two independent non-executive Directors and one
executive Director, namely Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond and Mr. Robert James
laia Il and Mr. Au Wai June, with Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond as the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and structure for
all remuneration of Directors and members of the senior management of the
Company and to determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and members of the senior management of the Company. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee have been posted on the website
of the Company and are available upon request. The Remuneration Committee
held one meeting during the Year with all members attended. The members of
the Remuneration Committee will meet as and when required.
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The Company has established its nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) in March 2012, The members of the Nomination Committee
comprise three independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Leung Shiu K,
Albert, Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond and Mr. Robert James laia Il with Dr. Leung
Shiu Ki, Albert as the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board on a regular basis and make recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed change. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee have been posted on the website of the Company and are available
upon request. The Nomination Committee held one meeting with all members
attended during the Year. The members of the Nomination Committee will meet
as and when required.

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
in August 201 1. The Audit Committee comprises three members, who are all
independent non-executive Directors and one of whom is an independent non-
executive director with the appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The members of the Audit Committee
comprise all the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yau Yan Ming,
Raymond, Dr. Leung Shiu Ki, Albert and Mr. Robert James laia Il, with Mr. Yau
Yan Ming, Raymond as the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review the
relationship with the auditors of the Company; review the financial information
of the Group and oversee the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been
posted on the website of the Company and are available upon request. During
the Year, three Audit Committee meeting was held and with all members
attended.

The Audit Committee reviewed the Company's unaudited interim results of the
six months ended 30 September 2012 and audited annual results or the financial
year ended 31 March 2013 with the conclusion that the preparations of such
results have been complied with the applicable accounting standards.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of the
external auditor and reviewing any non-audit services performed by the external

auditor. During the year, the remuneration paid and payable to the Company's
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auditors, for the provision of services as follows: FEMERBEMEMT
HK$'000
FET
Audit services %R l,168
Non-audit services (including review of interim report ERERB
and financial information) (EREEHPHRE RMBER) 1,027
2,195

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group. The responsibilities of the Directors and
Auditor are set out on pages 31 to 32 of this Annual Report.

The Board is responsible to ensure that an adequate system of internal control is
maintained within the Group, and to review its effectiveness through the Audit
Committee. The internal control systems are designed to meet the Group’s
particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature can
only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement or
loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure in achieving the Group’
s objectives. Practicable and effective control systems and procedures have been
implemented by the Group to enhance internal control on an ongoing basis.
The Board, through the Audit Committee, assessed effectiveness of the Group's
system of internal control.
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The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in building
successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company always endeavour
to provide relevant information to existing and potential investors, not only to
comply with the different requirements in force but also to enhance transparency
and communications with shareholders and the investing public. Regular and
publicly available disclosures about important issues, including performance,
fundamental business strategy, governance and the management of risk are made
through various channels:

*  the Company's annual general meeting;

. interim and annual results announcements published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange;

. interim and annual reports of the Company delivered to all shareholders;

¢ timely update of the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company;
. meeting with Shareholders;
. regular circulars and letters to Shareholders; and

. prompt news releases and announcements regarding major corporate
actions and business initiatives.

The Company maintains a website at www.tackfiori.com where the Company's
announcements, circulars, notices, financial reports, business developments, press
releases and other information are posted.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is in full compliance with
disclosure obligations stipulated under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have an equal
opportunity to receive and obtain externally available information that is released
by the Group.

The Company always welcome shareholders’ views and input. Shareholders and
other stakeholders may at any time address their concems to the Company by
mail or email. The contact details are set out in the corporate information on
pages 2 to 3 of this Annual Report.
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Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TACK FIORI INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KLZPIN261E

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tack Fiori International
Group Limited (the “Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 33 to 105, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
26/F Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2013, and of the Group’s loss
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2012 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on
those statements on 29 June 2012.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 June 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
MEZEWAER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE—Z—=F=A=1+—HILFE
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7% 7t A& B fi7)

2013 2012
—E-= —E-CF
NO‘FeS HK$’000 HK$'000
P 5E TR TET
Turnover B 7 33,339 56516
Cost of sales and services HE KRB A (23,017) (39,682)
Gross profit ER 10,322 16,834
Change in fair value of held-for-trading  H{EEBRE 2 A FEE
investments (8,676) =
1,646 16,834
Other income and gain H b WA e W58 8 2,488 902
Gain on debt restructuring EREA 7 WE 9 - 1,321,849
Gain on bargain purchase ZEBE 2 W& 10 - 21,563
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries  BUE 4R A [t B A 7] 7 W 25 [ = 56,376
Selling and distribution costs HE N DA (57,700) (44971)
Administrative and other operating THREMEERST
expenses (72,421) (65,520)
Finance costs RPN 12 - (13428)
(Loss) profit before taxation 123 ﬁ Al (B 8) % 13 (125,987) 1,293,605
Income tax FTiE % 14 - -
(Loss) profit for the year AER(BE)&ET (125,987) 1,293,605
Other comprehensive income arising ~ BMEE4S 2 Hit 2@ &
from exchange differences on
translations 65 264
Total comprehensive (expense) income A & 2 [ (F 7 ) W &5 4258
for the year (125,922) 1,293,869
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: JA T A £ 16 AN & (B518) & 7 -
Owners of the Company N/NISET ZE N (125,987) 1,293,771
Non-controlling interests R E R - (l66)
(125,987) 293,605
Total comprehensive (expense) income  JA N A+ B {5 A 5 |5 2 [ (F %)
for the year attributable to: g 25 4 %A
Owners of the Company VNN 7 EEA (125,922) 1,294,035
Non-controlling interests FEERE R - (l66)
(125,922) 1293869
(restated)
(E51)
(Loss) earnings per share R (EE) &AM 18
— Basic (HK dollars) —ER(ET) (1.54) 35.20
— Diluted (HK dollars) - 1650 (1.54) 31.68
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Asat31March 203 R -E—=%=A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—-= —E——fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BT 5T FERT FAT
Non-current assets E(RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME¥E - BE KRG 19 40,093 13,965
Trademark R 20 2,313 2,438
Rental deposits MeZe 6,334 -
48,740 16,403
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 35217 35,404
Trade and other receivables EWE S R EMZIE 22 11,930 22767
Loans receivable FEWE = 23 = 3,270
Held-for-trading investments HBIEEEKRE 24 29,480 =
Bank balances and cash BITRGERS 25 52,257 121,183
128,884 182,624
Current liabilities REBaE
Trade and other payables ENEBSREMZIE 26 35218 34,644
Net current assets REBEERE 93,666 147,980
Net assets EERE 142,406 164,383
Capital and reserves IR AN K fik 4
Share capital g 7K 27 11,455 318,201
Reserves i 130,951 (153818)
Total equity attributable to owners of AN F]HEE AL ERERE
the Company 142,406 164,383

The consolidated financial statements on pages 33 to 105 were approved and EREICEZGEAVBRRCEEZES
ER_F-ZFAAZTEEHRERR

BHE THTIALTRRRE:

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2013 and are signed on
its behalf by:

Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth Au Wai June
PR 2 S MEE
Director Director

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2013 &

Attributable to owners of the Company

3¢ 4z

HRERmBB K
T-ZFZAZT-HLEE

—=

KRAEEARE
Convertible Share ~ Contributed Capital Other Non-
Share Share  bond equity options surplus  redemption  Translation reserve  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium regve reserve  (Note ) reserve reserve  (Note2) losses  Sub-total interests Total
maR
B5EE  BRE 4)0BH E4EQ Httle N FER N
RE  RHEE 4] B (WED B RERE  (WE) ZHER It R @t
HGOO  HGOO  HKSO0  HKSOD  HKSODD  HKSODD  HKSOOD  HKSODOD  HKSO0  HKSON  HGOD  HKSOX
TET TR TR TEx  TEr  TEx TEx TEx  TEx  TExr  TEr TEx
At | April 2011 RZZ--%
mA-A 23 sy . S k) (%) B? C(8EIN) (A0 ANS (130760)
Profit for the year RER R = - - - - - - - 1T 1293771 (166) 1293605
Other comprehensive income BEEL A
anising from exchange differences 2EkR
on translations - - - - - - 264 - - 264 - 264
Total comprehensive income (expense) ~ REE 2 Mz
forthe year (R%)%@s = - - - - - 264 - 1293771 1294035 (l66) 1293869
Issue of shares (Note 27b) BaRH (L) 150014 - - - - - - - - 150014 - 150014
Recognition of equity component of A A BREHEH
convertible bonds #9 - - 8714 - - - - - - 8714 - 8714
Conversion of convertible bonds RETRRES
(Note 270) (B3E270 o0 147 08714 - - - - - - 98 - 98
Issue of shares under placement BERERTRG
(Note 27d) (BrrzF27d) 45974 = = = = = = = = 45974 = 45974
Transaction costs attrbutzble toissve —— E{TRAEER
of shares A - (1,149) - - - - - - - (1,149) = (1,149)
Release and reclassfication upon 0=l UNGE 3
deconsolidation of subsidiaries BLRENIE - - - - 187381 194830 (12983) - (R213)  (12963) (46349 (5991)
Recogntion of equity-settled RN RELE
share-based payments R AER AR = - = 1735 - - - - - 1735 - 1735
At 31 March 2012 WZE--F
SRET=E 318201 660455 - 1735 167,780 - 593 - (%84381) 164383 - 164383
Loss for the year AEERHR = = = = = = - - (125987)  (125.987) - (125987)
Other comprehensive income BEEEHi
arising from exchanged differences 2ENE
on translations - - - - - - 65 - - 65 - 65
Total comprehensive income (expense) ~ AE[E 2 E Mz
fortheyear (B3 &E - - - - - - 6 - (%) (159) - (B
Capitalreduction (Note 27¢) BRBIE (M=) (1183 - - - - - - 1K - - -
Issue of shares under rights issue RER/RETRR
(Note 271 (Pr&E271) 308 76368 - - - - - - - 79550 - 79550
Issue of shares under placement BERERTRG
(Note 27g) (Hg) m 9k - - - - - - - 08 - 10819
Transaction costs attrbutzble toissve — EA7IR 1A %15 X5
of shares A - (4009) - - - - - - - (4009) - (4009)
Issue of shares upon exercise of RERERE
share options (Note 27h) Wt (B ¥ 27h) 63 6,046 - @571 - - - 2571 - 6,682 - 6,682
Recognition of equity-settled B NRELE S
share-based payments (Note 28) D OES YAE S
(Htit2s) = = - 10 - - - - -1’ - log
At31 March 2013 RZF-cF
ZAZt-H 11,455 748,406 - 10,067 167,780 - 658 2571 (798,531) 142,406 - 142,406
Notes: TER
(1) The contributed surplus represents the difference between nominal value of the shares of () BARBRBARAMBENELAROEE
subsidiaries acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the shares of the Company BARNRBBER TS _FHACEHET
issued for the acquisition pursuant to the reorganisation in April 2002. W BITIROEE CER -
(2)  The other reserve represents the release of share options expenses from share options Q HuFEERERBEEAGFLEBRERES
reserve upon exercise of share options. oz BIRIER = o
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2013 2012
—E-=f T —_&F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TAERT TAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KExR
(Loss) profit before taxation B R AT (B 1) % (125,987) 293,605
Adjustments for: BTHEEEL R
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BELREBETE
equipment 7,483 3,671
Amortisation of trademark EZE 125 62
Net allowance for inventories FERETE 496 6,302
Write back of trade payables JENTE 5 AR (1,753) =
Write-off of deposits B M 1,479 -
Share-based payments expenses LA BER 7 2 10,903 | 735
Interest expenses B — 13278
Change in fair value of held-for-trading BEEEREZ AT EEZSH
investments 8,676 =
Interest income FLEWA (123) (539)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE BELREEE
equipment 416 692
Gain on bargain purchase ZEBEE 2 Wa - (21,563)
Gain on debt restructuring B EA W& - (1,321,849)
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUHGE B DR 2 W - (56,376)
Operating cash flows before movements LEECEPH L RETERE
in working capital (98,285) (80,982)
(Increase) decrease in inventories ZE 025 b (309) 884
Increase in rental deposit paid ENHEeEEEM (6,334) -
Decrease (increase) in trade and other W E 5 REMKER D (EN)
receivables 9,358 (11,941)
Increase in held-for-trading investments BIEBEHRBEEN (38,156) =
Increase in trade and other payables JER B 5 R H i 5RIEE 2,327 25,005
Net cash used in operations o 8 2T B F3H 4 Y E AR (131,399) (67,034)
Interest paid SENEAES! - )
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXBFAREEHE
ACTIVITIES (131,399) (67,038)
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2013 2012
—E-=F —ZE——fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B it FE5 FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZD
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BEE ¥ % » B FE L& & (33,798) (13,077)
Purchase of trademark BERE - (2,500)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—ZXWEB AR 10 - (11,822)
Deconsolidation of a subsidiary BUBARE —RKIMB AR I - (1,856)
Settlement of loans receivable WM ETER 3,270 58
Interest received B F B 123 268
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REFDFARERE
ACTIVITIES (30,405) (28,929)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Proceeds from issue of shares from an BIOIRARZEE 2RO G
open offer A - 150,014
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds BOBMRERZAERE — 100,000
Proceeds from placement of shares AL &R < PG 3IE 10,819 45974
Proceeds from exercise of share options TEBRE RERE 6,682 -
Proceeds from right issues AR 2 FiF A 79,550 -
Transaction costs attributable to issue BTG EIER S AR
of shares (4,009) (1,149)
Advance from investors REREEZBRK = 9,800
Repayment of investor's loan EEREZEN - (41,000)
Net outflow from debt restructuring BEREARERLFE 9 - (50,000)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES B & EB i B & B & 93,042 213,639
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH ANDR & R R &S B Y (R 2) & in
CASH EQUIVALENTS FE (68,762) 117,672
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FZHENBEELZEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 121,183 3,378
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EX2He¥E
RATE CHANGES (164) 133
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRVBAEREELEEY:
AT END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED R ERBTHEHB KRS
BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH 52,257 121,183
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GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section
of the annual report.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The Group is
principally engaged in apparel retail business in the People's Republic of
China (the "PRC"), luxury goods and accessories retail business (watches,
audio equipment and other accessories) in Hong Kong and the PRC,
pharmacy operation and healthcare product retail business and salon and
beauty service business in Hong Kong.

The presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements is
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). For the convenience of the consolidated
financial statements users, the results and financial position of the Group
are presented in HK$ as the Company’s shares are listed on the Stock

Exchange.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group applied the following amendments to
standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures — Transfers

of financial assets

—-REH
ARARRAEREEMKILLZE
RoA EROREEMA LS M
BRAR(HERA]) £ AR A
ZAMHER R T B2 E WA I
ERFHRAAEHN —HHKE -

ARRATEREREERES - K
SETEATEARAMBE(HE])
RERKTEXRE EBERTH
NEREEMMEHTERH(EEK
EERBRAMES) EEBLE
REFRBERTEXBUARER
XEEVRIBRBERS -

BEMBHRREFEERET(E
TT1) o MR AR A R A BB X P £
M RTRGEEMBRRZERE
AEBZEZERFBRRGAET

25

ERFMIREBITBERER
HEA(EBYBEREER )
RAFEE KAEECERTIME
BEITEMAGRM 2 ERZEFTA -

BEGEAE N BERE  REEH
(CHES £E
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The application of the above amendments to standards in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not applied early to the following new and revised HKFRSs

ERFTREBTERUBR
ERA(BEMBREER]) @)
RAFREER AL ZEFTAL
BHASBERAMMBEFE Z2HH
RAEERMAR/RZEFEHBR
RABRESHERKEATE -

EEMERRERZHTREET
BERMBHREE
AEBYARFEMTIIERME

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS | | and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 201 1)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 201 1)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 201 1)
Amendments to HKAS |
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36
HK (IFRIC)-INT 20

HK (IFRIC)-INT 2

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009201 |
cycle!

Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities'

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and
transition disclosures’

Consolidated financial statements,
joint arrangements and
disclosure of interests in other entities:
Transition guidance'

Investment entities

Financial instruments®

Consolidated financial statements'
Joint arrangements'

Disclosure of interests in other entities'
Fair value measurement!

Employee benefits'

Separate financial statements'

Investments in associates and joint ventures'
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income?
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities?
Recoverable amount disclosures for non-current assets?
Stripping costs in the production phase of

a surface mine'
Levies’

MAER I REETERBRH

A

== AN

BEMBASER (BT E)

ERMEREENETSE
(B3T%)
ERUBRERAEIRR
EENBREENETR
CHE)
ERUBRLENE 0%
BENEREENE ¥
REBHBREEN
F1R (BT R)
ERUBRLEAZ 0%
ERNBREENE R
REESHENETE
CHE)

ERMERE RS
ERUBREENZ 0%
ERUBRLENE 5%
ERUBRLENE SR
ERUBRLENE 35
EESHHENE 9%
(R=B——&§3T)
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(R-Z——%3])
BRI ENE 5
(R=B——FE3])

FAMERSEN -2
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BHEENE
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FAMEREENHR
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BERE
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BE Bk
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. ERE IR EETESHER
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) | ([ BRIERERE |) o)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective (Continued) EEAEERERZHITRLER]

BEREMBREENE)

O RZIE-=F-A-A%HKZRAKZ
FRERBMAER -
R-T-—NE-F-HHERRIELZ
FEHSRER-
R-_FE-RFE-A-BHARMANKZ
FERRAER-
R-E-——F+A—-HgAEEARZ
FEREMAER -

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 201 3.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2014. 2

} Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2015. 3

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2012. 4

BRMBHERAFIRMEIA
BERAMBRERAEIRIMHE LA
(RZZTNFRM)SIAMBEE
PRRHEZHAE BERBGR
FEAFIRIMH LR (RZT—
TETABIDHERBREDIE
ATEARE BB ZHRTE

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (as issued in 2009) introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (as revised in October 2010) adds
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows: BEEMBHREEUNEIRLEER

EMT
* Al recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS 39 - MEBBGFEAERH

40

“Financial instruments: recognition and measurement” are subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

BIR BANGEIREANL
MECHAVBEEELRLE
BRAKAFEFE - LER
REBREHNREREMUAR
BRABBLEHRE URE
BEERRERAEEAEN
BRFZENATREZES
RE —RRERSFHRE
B AT E - IBEEMET
RERBAERREZANTE
REFAHRCAFETE I
N REBEHBREERE
9% ERRAIEH AR RE 2 E
B URHEM2E KR 2HK
ARERE(THHERES)
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WA—RN B R o
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

With regard to measurement of financial liabilities that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in
other comprehensive income, unless the presentation of the effects
of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit
or loss.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS

9 for financial year ending 31 March 2016 based on the Group's financial

instruments as at 31 March 2013 will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS | Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income

The amendments to HKAS | “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income” introduce a new terminology for the statement of
comprehensive income. Under the amendments to HKAS |, a ‘statement
of comprehensive income’ is renamed as a ‘statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income’. The amendments to HKAS | retain the
option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either
a single statement or in two separate but consecutive statements. However,
the amendments to HKAS | require items of other comprehensive income
to be grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax
on items of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option to present items

of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS | are effective for the Group's annual periods
beginning | April 2013. The presentation of items of other comprehensive
income will be modified accordingly when the amendments are applied.
Other than the above mentioned presentation changes, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the amendments to HKAS | will
not result in any material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidated and disclosures

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and separate
financial statements” that deal with consolidated financial statements
and HK(SIC)-INT 12 “Consolidation — Special purpose entities” will
be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. In addition, HKFRS
10 includes a new definition of control that contains three elements: (a)
power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable retumns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns. Extensive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that have
interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structure entities. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are
more extensive than those in the current standards.

HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 12 will be adopted in the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning | April 2013. The
application of HKFRS 10 will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements. The application of HKFRS 12 may result in more
extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the other
new and revised HKASs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as

appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those used by

other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated

in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group's equity therein.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of or dissolves a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises
the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost or the subsidiary is
dissolved, (ii) derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interests in such subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable to them), and
(i) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest, with any resulting difference
being recognise as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.
When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to accumulated losses as
specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
“Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement” or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at
fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are

generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

46

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of
the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment” at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);
and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is

recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and
titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

*  the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods;

*  the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold;

*  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

* it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

*  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can
be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders'
rights to receive payment have been established.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately,
including trademark, are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rents arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange differences
are also recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme which are defined contribution plans are recognised
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “loss/profit before taxation” as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories are calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the two categories,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)
Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial assets at FV'TPL
Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial assets
held for trading and those designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near

term; or

e itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

* it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend earned on the financial assets and is disclosed as
separate line item in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, loans receivable and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

*  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

*  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Rights Issue

Rights issued by the Company for issuing a fixed number of the Company's
equity instruments in exchange of a fixed number amount of any currency
are equity instruments if the Company offers the rights pro rata to all of its

existing owners of ordinary shares of the Company.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group for settlement of debts are initially
measured at fair value. Convertible bonds that contain both the liability
and conversion option components are classified separately into respective
items on initial recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the fair value of the issue of the convertible bond
and the fair value assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the bond into equity, is included
in equity (convertible bond equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible bonds is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component, representing the option to convert the liability component into
ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in convertible bond equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in which case the balance
stated in convertible bond equity reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible bond equity reserve will be released to the
accumulated losses). No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
the allocation of the fair value. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to

the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets (Continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees and consultants providing similar
services as employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period/recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when the share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees and consultants providing similar
services as employees (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimated, with a corresponding adjustment to share options

reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to other reserve. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following is the key assumption concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at the end
of the reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sale. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such finished goods based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The
Group carries out an inventory review at the end of the reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete items.

If the market condition was to deteriorate, resulting in a lower net realisable

value for such finished goods, additional allowances may be required.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholder through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves and
accumulated losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associate with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the

payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ,E\ji%:[ =l
Categories of financial instruments M TEZER
2013 2012
-8-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FETT
Financial assets BBEE
Held-for-trading investments BRIELERE 29,480 -
Loans and receivables (including cashand ~ EHREKRFEBE(RRERE K
cash equivalents) BEZEEY) 58,410 133,146
87,890 133,146
Financial liabilities WBaE
Amortised costs B S R R 35,128 34,125

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include rental deposits, held-for-
trading investments, trade and other receivables, loans receivable, bank
balances and cash and trade and other payables. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The group entities collects most of its revenue and incurs most of the
expenditures in their respective functional currencies. The directors of
the Company consider that the Group's foreign currency exchange risk
is insignificant (except bank balances) as the majority of the Group's
transactions are denominated in functional currency of each individual group
entity.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BMEIR®E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) HEEBEEEERBEKE)
Market risk (Continued) HEE (&)
Currency risk (Continued) EEERE (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated bank RBERAR AEENIEEEL
balances at the end of reporting period are as follows: RITHEBREENT :
2013 2012
—E-= —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET
HK$ BT 7,021 54
Renminbi (“RMB") ARE(TARX]) 98 310
Sensitivity analysis SRS 9 i
The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase and TRHNEEMBEEH BT E

decrease in the functional currency of each group entity against relevant
foreign currencies and all other variables were held constant. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used which represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items,
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
change in foreign currency exchange rates.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

A positive number below indicates a decrease in post-tax loss or an
increase in post-tax profit for the year where the relevant foreign currencies
strengthens 5% against the functional currency of each group entity. For a 5%
weakening of the relevant foreign currencies against the functional currency
of each group entity, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
post-tax loss/profit for the year and the balances below would be negative.
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2013 2012
—E-= —E-CZF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FET
Decrease in post-tax loss for the year AEERTIZEERD
(2012: Increase in post-tax profit for the (ZE——F AEERTE RN
year) 1@ n)
Impact of HK$ against RMB BTAARB 2 ZE 351 3
Impact of RMB against HK$ ARESBLZ T E 5 16
Interest rate risk P 3 fa Bz
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable- AEEASIERITHEBZRAER
rate bank balances. N EER

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

The management considers that the Group'’s exposure to cash flow interest
risk on variable-rate bank balances as a result of the change of market
interest rate is insignificant and thus no sensitivity analysis is performed.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments in held-
for trading listed securities. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks. The Group's
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on securities listed on the Stock
Exchange. In addition, the directors are responsible to monitor the price risk.
For sensitivity analysis purpose, the sensitivity rate is 15% in current year as a
result of the volatile financial market.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
for equity price risks at the end of reporting period. If the prices of the
respective equity instruments had been 15% higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March
2013 would decrease/increase by approximately HK$4,422,000 as a result
of the changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis was unrepresentative of
the inherent equity price risk as the year end exposure did not reflect the

exposure during the year,

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for follow-up action to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other receivables as set out in note 22 at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

B®IR@®
PHEREEEERBEE)
BB B
AEERBRERBFIEEELMES
MAXKERR EEEEBEA
TREBRZFEELEEEHERR
AEBRERREIESHREY
REEMZBESF WIN EZEE
ERERER RERXELNME
AREBMEREY AFEE 2R
B EE15%

BRE AT
NTHREAMNDBERREHR
LBRERRETE - WRATLAEBR
ER/TRBISSREME S &%
BAE BEEERECLTEE
HEEPAEEEE_T—=F=
AZT-BULFEZEBRD,
IN494422,0005 7T °

EEERR ﬂﬁ 7 1 K Be e AR
EERERR  ERFRER
Z BB ARE &@ﬁW%EQZHW°

EEm R

AEERRSHUFELBTEMEM
BeERAKERRHEERZR
AEERR  REGAWBERREK

S ECHERMBEE CIREE
REREEERR AREEEEED

RE-—XEF AERBBETE
WEBEER o REERR
EHR R T2 MR IE@ER
KE S RAMGIR T RE S
BREEEZND 2 BIEL TR

EBRRBE -RLME  ARAE
wu%$$ .Z{u%ﬂﬂﬁ¢$/}j1



HEEREERRAT
2013 F F K

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE T —=F=A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has no significant concertration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a large number of counterparties. Retail sales and salon and
beauty services provided are settled in either cash or via credit cards issued
by banks or other financial insitutions. The credit risk on liquid funds and
credit card sales are limited because the counterparties are either banks or
other financial institutions with high credit ranking assigned by credit-rating
agencies, or state-owned banks. Certain sales of apparels are made through
shops in shopping malls and department stores and all cash and credit cards
payments from customers are received by shopping malls and department
stores on behalf of the Group. The credit risk on trade receivables from
those shopping malls and department stores are limited because all shopping
malls and department stores have good repayment record.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, all the financial liabilities are
repayable on demand or within 3 months after the end of the reporting
period. All the financial liabilities are non- interest bearing.

Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as
follows:

*  the fair values of financial assets with standard terms and conditions
and traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices;
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value (Continued)

*  the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels
| to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

*  Level | fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

*  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the
assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived

from prices).

*  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

As at 31 March 2013, the Group's held-for-trading investments are
measured at Level |.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision makers (“*CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focusing on types of
goods or services delivered or provided. During the year ended 3| March
2013, salon and beauty services business, pharmacy and healthcare products
retail business and securities trading and investments have become new
operating activities to the Group and are separately assessed by the CODM,
therefore they are reported in new reportable and operating segments.

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

(i)  Apparel retail business

(i) Luxury goods and accessories retail business

(iif) Salon and beauty service business

(iv) Pharmacy and healthcare product retail business

(v) Securities trading and investments
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and results by

7. DRER @)
’“‘BH&)\&%%

NTREFZHREEDHED 2

reportable and operating segments. REBFLEEREEDH o
For the year ended 3| March 2013 HE_ZT—=F=-H=1—HIF
E
Pharmacy
Luxury Salon and
goods and and  healthcare
Apparel  accessories beauty products  Securities
retail retail services retail  trading and
business business business business investments Total
REEmM BEXE RER
RESE REth ERREXET REER BHFEE
% TEEE REXE TEEH RRE&E A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TER TER
Segment revenue 2 EHA 37,041 6,319 1,745 149 - 45,254
Inter-segment revenue o E AU A - - - (23) - (23)
Intra-segment revenue DE R WA (11,892) - - - - (11,892)
Consolidated revenue Rl 25,149 6319 1,745 126 - 33,339
Change in fair value of RHIFEEEREZ
held-for-trading investments, NFEZ
included in segment result GTADBELE) - - - - (8,676) (8,676)
Segment result NEEE (58,344) (13,726) (2,763) (1,904) (8,826) (85,563)
Unallocated corporate expenses & % Bt 22 7] 7 (42912
Other income and gain H b A B s 2,488
Loss before taxation BRI E R (125,987)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)
For the year ended 3| March 2012

aBER )
PHBAREE®)
HE-_T——F=-A=+—HIF
E

Luxury

goods and

Apparel  accessories

retail retail
business business Total

ZEEmM

R R BC

TEXH TEEH st

HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000
TR TR TR

Segment revenue ol LN 53267 5,130 58,397
Intra-segment revenue D EARUWA (1,881) - (1,881)
Consolidated revenue ZAEWA 51,386 5,130 56,516
Segment result NERE (38972) (12,697) (51,669)
Unallocated corporate expenses AN W/NE Bl (41,988)
Other income and gain Hu i A R Uz 907
Gain on debt restructuring EREH W 1,321,849
Gain on bargain purchase ZEBE 2 W& 21,563
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries BOEGEAM B AR 2 Wz 56,376
Finance costs mERA (13428)
Profit before taxation M 5 B A 293,605

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in note 3.

Segment (loss) profit represents the loss/profit resulted in each segment
without allocation of other income and gain, gain on debt restructuring,
gain on bargain purchase, gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries, corporate
expenses and finance costs. This is the measure reporting to the Group's
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

K2 Eh &t BUR B 3 AT A
ZARE S BRAR -

SRR R RIS 5 BATEEE
B/EF D E E AR
5 BHEM WS AEBEY
% MBEAMBATZ M
RAXHRBARE - R E R
AERRBFHALEAEELE
REEERZ K -

= B

3
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities

Amounts of segment assets and liabilities of the Group are not reviewed

by the Group's CODM or otherwise regularly provided to the CODM,

accordingly, segment assets and liabilities are not presented.

7 ERER (%)
P HWEERERE
AEBEZNHEERBESEAL
AEEIRZERRERMIMUL
I AEHERTIBEERRE
HARBE2IDHEERAG -

Other segment information HioHER
For the year ended 3/ March 2013 2 —=FE=—H=+—HF
E
Amounts included in the measure of segment results: HENTEEEFAUTR
Pharmacy
Luxury Salon and
goods and and  healthcare
Apparel  accessories beauty products  Securities
retail retail services retail  trading and
business business business business  investments  Unallocated Consolidated
tRER BEXE RER
% REH# ZRRXE KEER BHEEH
SEXR TEER RBEER TERER kRE AOE )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER FTiEx TER TER TER
Depreciation of property, plant 0¥ BRERRE
and equipment e 4769 977 367 485 - 885 7483
Amortisation of trademark Gl 3 125 = = = = = 125
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BE R
plant and equipment HEZER 401 5 - - - - 416
Allowance (Reversal of allowance) 77 & % i (B B # )
for inventories 750 (254) - - - - 496
Wiite-off of deposits EeHE 1,479 = = = = = 1,479
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7. oBER®E
BE-_F——F=ZF=+—HIF
E
HEDHEERBANTRE:

Luxury
goods and
Apparel accessories
retail retail
business business Unallocated Consolidated
ZEEMR
REZE EHEE
E3i} E3 ADE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TET TET
Depreciation of property, I ERN N
plant and equipment e 3019 143 509 3671
Amortisation of other Hihmf & EH
intangible assets 62 - - 62
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE HEKX
plant and equipment REZER 316 376 - 692
Allowance for inventories FEEE 3,699 2,603 = 6,302
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its major products

7. oHWER#E)

REFEEMRBRBEZRA

NTREAGEREEIZER LR

and services: BZBRAZDH
2013 2012
—E-=F T—_%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Sales revenue from: HEWRARE -
Apparel retail business REZEEK 25,149 51,386
Luxury goods and other accessories HEEMNREM
retail business [ ER Y 6,319 5,130
Salon and beauty service business HEXEERANERRBER 86 -
Pharmacy and healthcare product BB R E m
retail business TEXK 126 -
Services income from: REBWARE -
Salon and beauty service business BEZEERRERREER 1,659 —
33,339 56516

74



HEEREERRAT
2013 F F K

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE—Z—=F=A=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 2HERE)
Geographical information HWEEH
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC. AEBEERHUNEERPH -
Information about the Group's turnover from external customers is AEEREIIBEFPZEEREEH
presented based on the location at which the goods or services are DRBEMRXNEmAMRERYE 2
delivered or provided. Information about the Group’s non-current assets is HE 2 ARBEERHEELE
presented based on the geographical location of the assets. HREBEEEMEMELEZS
Revenue from
Non-current assets external customers
FRBEE REMBEFE ZBA
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-—= —E—_—F ZB-= —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET THERT FET
Hong Kong iy 31,585 10,828 8,120 4912
The PRC s 17,155 5575 25,219 51,604
48,740 16,403 33,339 56516
Information about major customers FTEXFER

No individual customer has contributed over 10% of the total revenue of
the Group in both years.

TERENZFRZMEEEARE
Bl ATRIERI0% -

OTHER INCOME AND GAIN 8 HulgARKE
2013 2012
—g-= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET
Interest income A2 WA 123 539
Write back of trade payables fEfHE 5 IAREE 1,753 -
Others H 612 363
2,488 902
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76

GAIN ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING

During the year ended 31 March 2012, all liabilities of the companies under
the Schemes (as defined in the Company's circular dated 28 June 201 1)
were discharged by the cash consideration of HK$50,000,000 and issuance
of creditors convertible bonds with a principal amount of HK$20,000,000
with a tenure of | year and an interest rate of 2% per annum. The gain
on debt restructuring, representing the excess of liabilities discharged over
the cash consideration of HK$50,000,000 and the creditors convertible
bonds of HK$20,000,000, was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2012 and as follows:

9. BEEELAzWE
E-_#=ZA=+—H1It
ZEHE(ERERARAHA
MAE-_T——F~XA-tNHZ
BH)BETARZMBEBENE S
R 85000000078 T & % 17
200000008 7T B —FRF R
VB BEREATERKE %Z%M%
EREAz WG ERKRZEER
R IR & R E5000000078 T Rk A% 5B

BHZE—
R

$ﬁ%

20,000,000 7T 2 B A Al B R & &

ZBER D

CEREE-ZE—Z

F

_ﬂ -I- aﬁrz,m’z\w

HK$'000
FET
Convertible bonds A ¥R (& & 122,172
Provision for bank loans guarantees for deconsolidated EBUH#R &M B ARIEITER
subsidiaries EIREE 93599
Other borrowings HipEgEE 52,687
Accruals and other payables EiERRAEME H /T>}\ 46,332
Amounts due to deconsolidated subsidiaries J?géﬁ BEGZEAH B A IE' 234,667
Liabilities discharged under the Schemes BEZSTEERR EE 1,391,849
Less: Cash consideration W IRERE (50,000)
Issuance of creditors convertible bonds BTERABREES (20,000)
Gain on debt restructuring BRERE M 1,321,849
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0. GAIN ON BARGAIN PURCHASE

On 30 August 2011, the Group acquired 100% equity interest of Z &
Z International Limited at cash consideration of HK$16,000,000. The
acquisition was accounted for using the acquisition method. Z & Z
International Limited and its subsidiaries (“Z & Z Group”) are engaged
in luxury goods and accessories retailing business in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Z & Z Group was acquired so as to diversify the Group's retail
business while certain products from Z & Z Group offer synergy to the
Group's existing business which are in the interests of the Company and its

shareholders as a whole.

(@) Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

REBEE2Wa
RZE-——F/\A=+H A5E
JAIR & {8 16,000000/8 T M EEZ & Z
International Limited 2 100% f% 78 1 25 o
GERBEEERAKREBEG AR
Z & Z Intemational Limited & E Fff & 2
AlZ&ZEB)RBEBERFERE
YEEDMREHZEXL A5HE
Bz a7EBUS Tt ERETE
B Mz&zEEZETEMER
CSERAEBELAMANRR &6
AREREBRFRERNE -

@ RUBRHRIAZEERARE

Fair value

AT

HK$'000

TET

Property, plant and equipment ER S 3,009

Inventories rE 23,828

Loans receivable JE W E R 3,058

Other receivables H fth & Yo I8 4,158

Bank balances and cash RITEH LR 4,178
Trade payables ENEZHAE (410)
Other payables H e 1 3B (258)

37,563

The loans receivable and other receivables acquired with a fair value of
HK$3,058,000 and HK$4,158,000 respectively had a gross contractual
amount of approximately HK$3,058,000 and HK$4,257,000

respectively.

BT U BE 2 F B 9 Rl 3,058,000
7 7T }4,15800078 T 2 JE W B
HEEMEBRBEZEEY
% 85 Bl 4 A30580007% 7T &
42570005 7T °
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10. GAIN ON BARGAIN PURCHASE (Continued)

0. EEBE 2 W HE &)

(b) Gain on bargain purchase b) BEBEzW#E
HK$'000
FTET
Cash consideration transferred FrEzEl e B (16,000)
Less: Fair value of recognised amount of identifiable R FTYER BRI EEFEZEER
net assets acquired k- WA/NS B -] 37,563
Gain on bargain purchase #ERBEZWH 21,563

Acquisition related cost of approximately HK$5,000 had been
excluded from the consideration transferred and have been recognised
as an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the period.

WA A 450008 TE B
frEERENR YRR
GAZEUNGRERAEMAY

(c) Net cash outflow arising on acquisition € WBEEZRERLEE
HK$'000
TET
Consideration paid in cash Y NIRERE (16,000)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired BB BRERAEEEY 4,178
(11,822)

(d) Impact of acquisition on results of the Group d WBEHAEEXECFE

Turnover and profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 includes
approximately HK$5,130,000 and HK$12,707,000 were generated by
Z & Z Group from the acquisition date (30 August 201 1) to 31 March
2012 respectively. Management are of the view that it is impracticable
to disclose the revenue and the results of Z & Z Group for the period
from | April 2011 to 31 March 2012 as if the acquisition had been
effected on | April 2011 since such financial information was not
provided by the vendor.

78
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ZA=+—-BHHEBEZ&Z&HE
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GAIN ON DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES [.
During the year ended 31 March 2012, pursuant to the Schemes which

was defined in the circular issued by the Company dated 28 June 2011,
deconsolidation of certain subsidiaries were effected. The assets and
liabilities of these subsidiaries were deconsolidated from the consolidated
financial statements of the Group and were as follows:

Hm,% Bt 2 7 2 W
;t—?‘ _¢ A= ‘|‘ E|JJ:¢
B BEZFFE(TEREALD
HH?%:%——E/‘—\H:H\EIZ%E
) BBURE THEBARGE AR -
ZENBRAZEERER HX)%EA

AEBZHREVBRREEGA
FEMT
2012
—E—-%F
HK$'000
FHET
Bank balances and cash RITHEH K E/Eu ® 856
Trade receivables EWE S = 23,699
Other receivables and prepayments H b e J%Z IE SEUNE:N 3,585
Trade payables Fgf\ﬁ B 558 (13,695)
Accruals and other payables ezt & H & H Tﬁ FE 7 5/ (11,909)
Amount due to a holding company r1"TT L NEIE O] (29,826)
Net liabilities of the deconsolidated subsidiaries BB S ﬁ BARZBEES (26,290)
Non-controlling interests I Rt 2 (46.949)
Released from exchange reserve B N EE (12,963)
(86202)
Impairment loss on amount due from EWEEGZ A B ARIFIBL
a deconsolidated subsidiary BEEE 29,826
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUBEAEWB AR Z W (56,376)
Bank balances and cash deconsolidated BHGEZRITE#K LIRS (1,856)
FINANCE COSTS 12. @E KRR
2013 2012
—E-=f —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Interests on: KTE&EZHE
— Bank and other borrowings wholly — A B/\ hF W ¥§5( 188 2 R1T
repayable within five years MEMEE - [1,135
— Convertible bonds — R EAS = 2,143
Bank charges BITER - 150
- 13,428
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3.

80

(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

13. BR®BLAT(E])REA

2013 2012
“E-=f —ET-——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FTAET
(Loss) profit before taxation has been arrived BR % A1 (&5 48) & A 2 Bk -
at after charging:
Staff costs 8 T &
Directors’ emoluments (note |5) Y EACIEIE))
— fees and other emoluments —WEREMEMSE 7,204 3,391
Other staff costs Hfth 8 T %5 B
— salaries, allowances and bonus —I& 2EINELA 27,699 18,400
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RIRB R &I 4,687 3,751
— share-based payments included in — T ATTBRA X 2 AR
administrative expenses EBEBIAR 8,959 1,330
48,549 26,872
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRAAERY Z2FERA 21,665 33,380
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% * BB KX EITE 7,483 3,671
Amortisation for trademark B 125 62
Auditor's remuneration 1% 85 A B & 2,049 [,259
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y%« BE R Xk & 2 BB 416 692
Operating lease rental on premises MELEHERS 26,862 23,789
Restructuring costs and charges BEHKRAKER - 9,447
Net allowance for inventories (included in FEBREFHEG A
cost of sales) SHERAKR) 496 6,302
Write-off of deposits iognp i/ 1,479 =
INCOME TAX 14 Frie R

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

BERTNGEHR & mEFE st
JERRTE FIR 165% 5t &

REPECEMAEHE(LERSE
BOED RBERGEREEHEH -
HEBARRZMETE MK
5525% o
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INCOME TAX (Continued)

No Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC Enterprise Income Tax has provided in
the consolidated financial statements as the Group has no assessable profit
for both years.

The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit before
taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

4. FEH (&)
HRZMEEEYEECRERII G

Mo BAEERES M BRRL B
REBFGHETELEREH -

FEEMBHARAEARERL
FRBLA (BB E RIS ERM T

follows:
Hong Kong PRC Total
5B H @t
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
8-z _T--F 8- T _F Z8-=F _T—_F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET TERT TiET TR THET

(Loss) profit before tax BR 75t A (&5 48) 4 (69.909) 1328693 (56,078) (35088)  (125987) 1293605
Domestic income tax rate N R =Yl e 16.5% 16.5% 25% 25%
Taxation at the domestic BAMER

income tax rate MERAE ZFE (11,535) 219,234 (14,020) (8772) (25,555) 210,462
Tax effect of expenses not TEMTRAX 2

deductible for tax purpose BT E 7,846 10,285 359 2,325 8,205 12610
Tax effect of income not taxable 6 3Rt WA 2 1 7%

for tax purpose % (317) (230965) = = (317)  (230965)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses & A& 7 2 1d 51 B %5

not recognised BEZHEYE 3,658 |,446 13,661 6,447 17,319 7893
Tax effect of deductible EEN Rk

temporary difference THEHL

not recognised HEs 2 348 = = = 348 =
Tax charge for the year AEEHBIH - - _ - _ _
At the end of the reporting period, the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC have RFERR AEBZHEME R

unused tax losses of HK$9 1,737,000 (2012: HK$37,093,000) available for
offset against future profits, which will expire in five years. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to unpredictability

of future profit streams.

Al B9 737000,% T(ZE—ZF:
37,093,000 7T) 2 & B A 1 7% & 18
AEEERAEN  BRARF -
AR R K A T AT R o0& F SRR - 0
ERBEEEERECHEBEE -
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I5. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

@

Mr. Chiu Siu Po was appointed as director on 5 August 201 | and is also the Chairman

of the Company.

Mr. Jackson Ng was appointed as director on |6 April 2012 and resigned on 7 April
2013.

Mr. Liu On Bong, Peter and Dr. Leung Shui Ki, Albert were appointed as directors on

I'l August 201 1.

Mr. Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth was appointed as director on 4 October 201 |.

Mr. Wan Wai Hei, Wesley was appointed as director on 3 November 201 |.

Mr. Au Wai June, Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora, Mr. Miu Frank H., Mr. Yau Yan Ming,

Raymond and Mr. Robert James laia Il were appointed as directors on 15 August 201 I.

Mr. Ho Tak Fun and Mr. Philip King were appointed as directors on 5 August 201 | and
resigned on 31 October 201 1.

Mr. James McMullen, Mr. Pau Chin Hung, Andy, Mr. Choong Khuat Leok and Mr. Kooi

Tock Chian were resigned as directors on |5 August 201 |.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of

the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has waived any

emoluments in both years.

15. EEM S 2

Mt

@

HLREER-_ZE——F\ARAE
REREE WHAARALRE-

REBEEEN _Z——FWMA+H
EZTAESE IR _-_Z—=FMA
T HEE-

BEAXRERRREBELIN _F——
FNA+-BEZERES -

BREEEER-_T——FTANAE
ZERESE-

ERERER-T——F+—-A=H
BEZERESE-

MEREE HMMFELL BFERE
8 B 3 %5 4 2 Robert James laia Il 76 &£
“E——FN\ATHBREZARES -

EFTERSEREER T ——
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6.

84

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 6. BEEM=
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, four (2012: ARELERRHFALH WE(Z
four) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are included in E-_F WNA)REALAEE &K
the disclosures in note |5 above. The emoluments of the remaining one EZMER EXHEISEE 8T
(2012: one) individual employees were as follows: —%(ZF—Z-F:—%)EMEE
ZHEWT
2013 2012
—E-= ZE-CZF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Salaries and other benefits FZe REHEMEF 801 507
Retirement benefits schemes contributions IR YR 4& | 51 8l fit 3% 15 8
Share-based payments IR BERE 2 5% 278 57
1,094 572
The emoluments were within the following bands: MeENTATEE :
No. of employees
BEAR
2013 2012
“E-=F —Z——fF
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z£ £ 1,000,000 7T - |
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T Z 1,500,000 7% 7T I -
No remunerations were paid by the Group to any of the directors of the AEEVEMARREMNESHA
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or EREHFALTZINEMHE - AR
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. SIEHMBEAREERERMBER 2
B ERRERME-
DIVIDENDS 17. B2

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during both years, nor has
any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period.

NAMEFERERN  EkEH
EBE  BHREBRETE TR
MRS, °
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(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 18.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earmings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

SR (ER) B _
ARREBABGEERERREE(H

B)ANTIEA T 8B E -

2013 2012
—2-=f —T-——f
HK$’000 HK$'000
THRT FTET
(Loss) eamnings for the purpose of basic (loss) T E AN BIHEH AL
eamnings per share attributable to owners BEAR(ER) &2
of the Company (E8)&EF (125,987) 293,771
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEHELTRR T E:
interests on convertible bonds ABRERZME - 1,529
(Loss) eamings for the purpose of diluted Eek@gs(BE) AN
(loss) eamnings per share (JES 18) & F (125,987) 1,295,300
2013 2012
—BE-Z=ZF —E2——-F
’000 ‘000
TR T
(restated)
(E51)
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares T E &R E AR (E1E)&BF| 2
for the purpose of basic (loss) earmnings EREE QI Bok
per share 81,771 36,750
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEEETARIYE
convertible bonds ARRES - 4137
Weighted average number of ordinary shares M E &R #E (EE) B F
for the purpose of diluted (loss) earnings Lm R miE
per share 81,771 40,887

The computation of diluted (loss) earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2013 and 2012 does not assume the exercise of the Company's
share options because the exercise price of those options was higher than
the average market price of shares.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic
(loss) earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2012 has been
adjusted for share consolidations and rights issue as disclosed in note 27.

AEEE S R-_ZT—-F
“AZ+-BUHEEZzEREE(E
18) B H T ERRAD B 2 B E
B I ERZSBREZT
EEENROZFEMIE-

HEHE-_Z——F=A=+—H
tFEEZERERBR)RAFZE
BRNETHEC RN FUEELZ
BHE G RERELAE -
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. ¥ BERRHE

Furniture,

fixtures and Leasehold Motor
equipment  improvements vehicles Total
5 LB L ‘ )

k&t WEREE e ast

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000

TRT TRT TRT TET
COST A
At | April 2011 R_Z——FMNA—H 9,041 - - 9,041
Exchange adjustments ER R 452 36 = 488
Additions NE 2,041 4971 6,065 13,077
Disposals HE - (1,608) (86) (1,694)
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries g1l INGI 3o 172 1,593 | 244 3,009
At 31 March 2012 R-F-ZF#-A=1—H 11,706 4992 7223 23921
Exchange adjustments fE 5 179 236 - 415
Additions NE 7131 26,667 - 33798
Disposals & (2,029) (1.377) - (3,406)
At 31 March 2013 W-_E-=F=A=1+—H 16,987 30518 7223 54,728
DEPRECIATION nE
At | April 2011 R_F——%FMNA—H 6930 = = 6930
Exchange adjustments P& i 2 347 10 = 357
Provided for the year TEERE | 506 1,875 290 3,671
Eliminated on disposals & B 6 - (1,002) - (1,002)
At 31 March 2012 R-F-—ZF=A=+—H 8,783 883 290 995
Exchange adjustments [ i g 119 67 = 186
Provided for the year NEEZEE 849 4671 1013 7483
Fliminated on disposals 8 B 3 (2016) (974) - (2990)
At 31 March 2013 W-E—=ZF=RA=1+—H 8,735 4597 1,303 14,635
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2013 R-F-=F=A=1—H 8252 25921 5920 40093
At 31 March 2012 W-_Z-—-%#=fA=+—H 2923 4109 6933 13,965
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a L% -BERZEE H Z nE
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: DUNBERERATEXRE
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of terms of HEYERE R TE

the leases or 7 years (LABAG £ B %)

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3to 7 years G HERRE 3274
Motor vehicles 3to 10 years = 3B 0E
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20. TRADEMARK 20. BAR
HK$'000
TET
CosT B
At | April 2011 RZE——FWMA—H -
Additions during the year 2012 “E-_FERE 2,500
At 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 RZE——F=A=+—-HRK
—E-=$=R=+1—-H 2,500
AMORTISATION 3]
At | April 201 | R-_E——FNA—H -
Charge for the year 2012 —E-—FExH 62
At 31 March 2012 R-_F-——f=A=t—H 62
Charge for the year 2013 —E-=FEXH 125
At 31 March 2013 R-_E—=F=ZH=+—H 187
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2013 R-_F-—=Zf=ZA=+—H 2313
At 31 March 2012 R_E—_F=A=+—H 2438
The above trademark represents brand name used in apparel retail business LRERERESEXGMARE
which was acquired from third party and amortised on a straight-line basis DREBEE=R WAEHEN
over 20 years. FHH -
21. INVENTORIES 2. B8
2013 2012
-8-= —E--F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TET
Finished goods SR & 35,217 35,404
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22.

88

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2 EWESRHEMNKE
2013 2012
—E-= —E-_fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FETT
Trade receivables el & 5508 6,080 8,621
Other receivables H o fE UG TR IE 5,850 14,146
Total trade and other receivables EWE S R A IEERE 11,930 22,767

Retail sales and salon and beauty services provided are nomally settled in
cash or by credit card with the settlement from the corresponding banks
or other financial institutions within 7 days. For receivables from retail sales
conducted through shopping malls and department stores, the Group allows
a credit period range from 30-90 days. The following is an aged analysis of
trade receivables presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

TEHENRRHEEEZZER
REARBE—RUREIAEAFR
ERBAERTIHBEHERTAER
@ﬁ %LL%%&EE@T%@
TEEHECREREFEMNE A&
l -%Zﬁ;%%)r¥miﬁoaom
ﬁiﬁx BRREAHENN 2 EK

BEHREZRRAMMT :
2013 2012
—EB-z=ZF —ZE2-——-fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THRT TiET
Within 90 days 9B A 5,378 6,794
91 to 180 days 9IEI180H 339 1,826
181 to 365 days 181 2365 H 315 |
Over | year | A E 48 -
6,080 8,621

The Group has policy of providing allowance for doubtful debts which
is based on the evaluation of collectability and age of accounts and on
management's judgement including credit worthiness and past collection
history of each customer.

AEBBRBREWFEN KR
AEAREEBHERER 2 HH
(BREERRBERRLE) HRE
affes e o
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$702,000 as at 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$1,827,000)
which are past due as at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The directors considered
that trade receivables which are neither past nor vet impaired are of good
credit quality and there are continuous subsequent settlements from these
customers. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

0 EREZRHEMRE S
AEBZRKE SHEBELEBBER
—E-=¥=ZfA=t+-BrzEAMAE
A% B702008 L(ZF — = F:
1,827,000 7T ) 2 FE W R X - B B K
BRREPRCAH HASEL
B RAEEEBRBE-EFTRAY
EOBNARRELEKE ZRESR
BERRY MaSERPEERE
BR-AEEVTERUEEHREE
] 45 40 & o

EAMERREZENE S RER
iR

2013 2012

—E-= —E——F

HK$°000 HK$'000

TR TEx

91 to 180 days 912 180H 339 1,826
181 to 365 days 181 2365 H 315 |
Over | year | FE A E 48 —
702 1,827
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23. LOANS RECEIVABLE 3. BREX

2013 2012

—E-= —E——F

HK$°000 HK$'000

TERT FTET

Fixed-rate loans receivable TEEKER - 3270
The amount is unsecured, carried interest at Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate ERRBERERT RELRER
Plus 5% per annum and repayable within 12 months after the end of 3| FEMEMESEFEREAR-E
March 2012. During the current year, the balance was fully settled. ——F=-A=t—H&RENREA

NEER - RAFE - BROEHES -
24. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 24 HEEERE

2013 2012

—BE-=F —Z-—_-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FTET

Held-for-trading investments include: EEBRERRE

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong BB LM ZRAES 29,480 -
Held-for-trading investments comprise of equity securities listed in Hong BFIEEBEREBERENEE LM 2R
Kong and their fair values are based on quoted market bid prices. AES HALEDLIRETSRMR

BEABEE-
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25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 25 BROEHEASR
Bank balances carry interest at average market rates of 0.01% (2012: 0.01%) RITE MR T 9% T FE 00 E(Z
per annum. T—_F:001E)ft8 -
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2%6. EREZRHAMKE
2013 2012
—E-= —ZE-fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THET
Trade payables B E 5 5 4,842 8,760
Other payables and accruals HiEMNFIENETER 30,376 25,884
Total trade and other payables FEfE 5 N E hZ A A% 35218 34,644
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the REEHR HEZEAM2 2R
invoice date at the end of the reporting period. NESRBZREDMWT -
2013 2012
—E-= —E-CZF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT TET
Within 90 days 90 H A 137 3900
91 to 180 days 9IE180H = 3,033
181 to 365 days 181 2365 H 66 =
Over 365 days 3658 £ 4,639 1,827
4,842 8,760
The credit period on purchases of goods is ranged from 60 to 90 days. BEERZEEHNTOENA -
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SHARE CAPITAL 27. RA&
Number of Nominal
shares value
RHEA R4 EE
‘000 HK$'000
TR FET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZE-——FMA-BEREE

at | April 201 | 001 B L2 E@kK 50,000,000 500,000
Share consolidation (Note a) A& ff (i aEa) (45,000,000) -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each RZE——F=A=+T—HEREE

at 3| March 2012 0178 EBK 5,000,000 500,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.| each RZZE-——_FMNA—-BEKREE

at | April 2012 0.178BTT 2 EEK 5,000,000 500,000
Share consolidation (Note ) Wt & oF (Bl sEe) (4,000,000) -
Share subdivision (Note €) R 1 48 (fif ste) 49,000,000 -
Share consolidation (Note i) & of (B EEi) (45,000,000) -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each R-ZE—=F=A=+—HE8KEE

at 3| March 2013 0.1 7872 & B 5,000,000 >00,000
Issued and fully paid: BIIRERE -

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each R-ZE——FMA-HEREE

at | April 201 | 001 BTz E@K 221,26 2213
Share issued upon open offer (Note b) NRBEEET 2R (H5Eb) 15,001,474 150,014
Share consolidation (Note a) W tn & o (Bt sEa) (13,700,461) -
Conversion of convertible bonds (Note ¢) 3,3 A # % & % (Kf 7 ¢) 1,200,000 120,000
Issue of shares under placement (Note d) L& 817 2 IR M (fTaEd) 459,739 45974
Ordinary shares of HK$0.| each R-ZE—Z—F=A=1+—HE8KHEE

at 3| March 2012 0.1 7872 &R 3182013 318,20
Share consolidation (Note ) Bt & oF (Bl ste) (254561 1) -
Capital reduction (Note e) B ZRHA (M 5Ee) - (311.837)
Issue of shares under rights issue (Note f) AR BT 2 R (K & f) 31820 3,182
Issue of shares under placement (Note g) RERT MG (e 127,280 1,273
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 17 {8 i % # 8 17 2 Bz {0 (Fi &Eh)

(Note h) 63,640 636
Share consolidation (Note i) W tn & oF (B s (1,030971) -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.| each RZE—=F=A=1+—HEKREAE

at 3| March 2013 01782 & B 114,552 11455
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

@)

After completion of the Open Offer as defined in note (b) below, the Company
implemented the share consolidation on the basis that every 10 issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.01 each was consolidated into one share of HK$0.10 each on 4 August
2011.

On 3 August 2011, the Company issued 15,001,474,104 new shares on the basis of
339 offer shares for every 5 shares of HK$0.0 each (the “Open Offer”).

1,200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each were issued pursuant to the exercise
of the conversion rights attaching to the Company's convertible bonds at a conversion
price of HK$0.10 per share from 19 August 2011 to 30 January 2012.

On 27 January 2012, 459,738,927 ordinary shares of HK$0. each were issued at
HK$0.10 per share through a placing agent.

On 23 August 2012, the Group effected a capital reorganisation which involved the
followings:

—  Share consolidation that every 5 issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each be consolidated into | consolidated share of HK$0.50 each;

—  Capital reduction that paid-up capital of the consolidated shares be cancelled
to the extent of HK$0.49 per consolidated share so as to form a new share of
HK$0.01 each;

—  Share subdivision that the authorised but unissued consolidated shares of
HK$0.50 each be subdivided into 50 shares of HK$0.01 each; and

—  Transfer of the entire amount of the credit arising from the capital reduction
to accumulated losses of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$311,837,000.

27. BRA&#)

B3

@

RERDAEE(EE LT XM D)
B ARRAR_E——FNANB#E
TROEH EEAKEBIORERE
BWOIBLZERTRAZETRNE
HE—RERAECIOETZRG

R-ZE——FNAZH KAARAK
BRAEREREBE0IETZK
DEEDRBERN 2 EEERT
15001474104 57 B tp (AR EE])

RZE——FNAT+NABEZZE—Z
F—A=+H ARARETHRKE
SRR EREROI0B T ZER
{8 % 17 {5 T 8 17 1,200,000,000 % & ik @
BOIOB T2 E@BK -

RZE——F—A=++tH ' AQAF
BB - ARERBERERIETE
17459738927k B REEOI BT 2 &
AR -

R-ZTE——FNA=-+=H £5H
ETEREH EPSRUTER:

— RHAH BESKREREEI
BTZBEBROIRABTLARA
HBIREREBEBL LA
GERR 13

—  BXHIR EHEAHROMZE
AHRERAGRHOBT  F
FREHBROKAEREE
BILZHBG

— BHFMA FREESBITLLZ
FEEERETAHROEFAA
S0R% & A E 0018 T Z B 17
&

— BEXERELEZ2HERBD

311,837,000 ;L8 A A QA &f
BB
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

] On 7 December 2012, 318,201,240 rights shares of HK$0.0| each were issued on the
basis of one rights share for every two existing shares held on |5 November 2012 at
subscription price of HK$0.25 per rights share.

(g On 3 January 2013, 127,280,496 ordinary shares of HK$0.0l each were issued at
placing price of HK$0.085 per share through a placing agent pursuant to a placing
agreement dated 20 December 2012.

(h)  During the year ended 31 March 2013, 63,640,248 share options of HK$0.01 each
were exercised at exercise price of HK$0.105.

() On 31 January 2013, the Company effected a share consolidation that every 10 issued
and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each be consolidated into | consolidated

share of HK$0.1 each.
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27. BRA&#)
Hig: (%)

®

RZZ——F+-F+8 K @)%
7318201240k & R E 001 /B T 2 it
iR BEAR-_Z——F+—AH
THHEHEMBRREROEE R
G REEATRERRM025
BT o

R-—E—ZF—F=ZR BREAHAE
ZE-—FFZRAZTHZEERE
ARAER—EREREREERS
F%0.085 7 T % 17 127,280,496 % & A% @
B0 BT @AKo

BE-_T-—=F=A=1+—-HBItFE"
6364024817 & B EE001 % T 2 BB %
BIRITHEEO.105 B T EITE -

R-ZE-Z=ZF—A=+—-H0 A2Q7
ETRHEH  BEIORTRAE
BLZBEETRRETEBRAMKA
IREREECI BT ARG -
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

On |1 April 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to any directors
(including executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners, joint venture business partners, promoters, service providers to
the Group (“Participants’) who the board of directors considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed or shall contribute to the Group. The Old
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on Il April 2002. Under the Old Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may grant options to the Participants to subscribe for shares in
the Company. On |8 September 2012, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the “New Scheme™) with effective periods of 10 years
commencing on 18 September 2012 and the Old Scheme was expired on
10 April 2012. The principal terms of the New Scheme are similar with the
Old Scheme. All other respects of the provisions of the Old Scheme shall
remain in full force and holders of all options granted under the Old Scheme
prior to such expiry shall be entitled to exercise the outstanding options
pursuant to the terms of the Old Scheme until expiry of the said options.

28.

URDRAER 2R

UREGERBRETE

R-FZE_FWA+—H  KXQF
R-RERESS(ESD
TRENERRRESS2RBE
RARCLABEHAKEEL AR
ZAREIMES(ERAUTES
FATEENBUFNTES ) RE
8 URAKEEMER  FAA -
DB AR HER KE-
RE EBEH GEXBEH
FRARRGHEB(2EE]) -
BB T _SWNA+—HiE
AAEMIFE - BREENE ARF
EZCAM2EER L BBENH
RBARABRD - R_F—ZFAN
R+N\B ARARA-EHER
Earal((#stall) #atda-=%
—ZFANATNREFBERIOFE
MEFEAER-_T—_FMWATH
ke FatEl s TR IGEREER S
BB BRI ZABRELTE
BEATRMN MK ERARE
EffSRHcMERKREZREEA
BRERLEBBERERA REE
ATEIZ BRRITRE R ARITE < FEARHE -

\

N
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

28. URDRER 2R
IREEERRENE ()
BREZRTEANFEDT

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Adjusted
exercise price

after the capital

Adjusted
exercise price

after the share

Original reorganisation on consolidation on

Date of grant Vesting period/date Exercise period exercise price 23 August 2012 31 January 2013

R-®B-—Z=F R-ZB-=F%

NA=Zt=H —B=t+-8H

ETEXEAR ETROSHE

RHBAH BES/BH TR RiTTHEE ZKHBTEE ZKHABIEE

(Note 1) (Note 2)

(FE=ED) (PH3E2)

Old Scheme 16.1.2012 16.1.2012-157.2013 16.7.2013-15.1.2015 HK$0.1 HK$0.5 HK$5
Bt 01T 058 T 587
New Scheme 14.1.2013 14.1.2013 14.1.2013-13.1.2023 HK$0.105 N/A N/A
At gl 0.105% 7T TiE R TER

All options under New Scheme were exercised before 31 January 2013, * HHEETZMERRER-_Z-—=

F-A=+—HAETE-
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28.

The following table discloses movement of the Company's share options

held by Directors, consultants (providing similar services as employees) and

employees during the year ended 3| March 2013 and 2012:

R SRR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE—Z—=F=A=1+—HILFE

URGOABER Z2RARE)
UREEERBRESTE(E)
TERERE-T-—-FR-%
——E=A=1+-BIEERESE "
BER(RUEEES L2 RE) RE
BFH AN AERIES

Number of share options

BREHEA
Outstanding at Capital Share Granted Exercised  Outstanding at
142012 reorganisation  consolidation  during the year  during the year 31.3.2013
R-B-ZF R-B-=F
mA—-A REFE REAEE ZA=+-H
fe R AT BXEA R4 & 5 R (ik:d fe R AT
(Note 1) (Note 2)
G (M3E2)
000 000 ‘000 000 ‘000 000
i T i i 1 i
Old Scheme Bt e
Directors ! 70,000 (56,000) (12,600) = = 1,400
Consultants E 220,000 (176,000) (39,600) - - 4,400
Employees EE 10,000 (8,000) (1,800) - - 200
300,000 (240,000 (54,000) - - 6,000
New Scheme #atEl
Consultants =) - - - 63,640 (63,640) -
300,000 (240,000 (54,000 63,640 (63,640) 6,000

Exercisable at 31 March 2013 RZZE—=4
ZA=+-H
A T4
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28.

98

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 28. URHDAEBR 2N E)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) NREGEBERESS(E)

The table below discloses movements of the Company's share options TEBBEREFEFEETZAR

under the old scheme during the prior year. AIBREEE

Number of share options

BREHR

Outstanding at Granted  Outstanding at
142011  during the year 31.3.2012
R-—8——& R-BE-Z-F
mA—H REEE ZA=1+-H
fof K17 £ B o R AT
‘000 ‘000 ‘000
T1n T3 T 17

Directors ! - 70,000 70,000

Consultants B - 220,000 220,00

Fmployees E& - 10,000 10,000

- 300,000 300,000

Exercisable at 31 March 2012 R-_F-—%=ZA=1+—H -

A F17{E

Notes: B &F

(1) On 23 August 2012, the exercise price of the share options was adjusted from HK$0.10 (1) RZE-—ZFNAZ+Z=H BRE
per share to HK$0.50 per share as a result of the capital reorganisation as disclosed THFTMBEEsEREH  BRE
in note 27. Accordingly, the total number of share options granted was adjusted from ZIEERGROICETHEZGR
300,000,000 shares to 60,000,000 shares, 05078 7T » Bt - IR BB IR iE B 8

300,000,000 % 73 % Z 60,000,000 &

(2)  On 31 January 2013, the exercise price was adjusted from HK$0.5 per share to HK$5 Q) RZE-—Z=ZF—-A=+—0 BRE
per share as a result of the share consolidation as disclosed in note 27. Accordingly, the TMFTMBEZRNEH TEE
total number of share options granted was adjusted from 60,000,000 to 6,000,000. BEROSETHAREGRSET « Bt -

FiT £ 4 B X 2 42 2/ 60,000,000 17 38 2
% 6,00000017 °

In respect of share options exercised during the year ended 31 March HBE-_T-=F=-A=+—AL

2013, the weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$ 1.0 FREMEZBRENS R

(adjusted by share consolidation). Az MEFHRE R0 T (&

Befn & HraHE) -
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, 63,640,248 options were granted
on 14 January 2013. The estimated fair value of the options granted and
vested on 14 January 2013 is approximately HK$2,571,000, which was
fully recognised as share option expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the year. During the year ended 31 March
2012, 300,000,000 options were granted on |6 January 2012. The estimated
fair value of the options granted on 16 January 2012 is approximately
HK$12,510,000, of which the Group recognised HK$8,332,000 (2012:
HK$1,735,000) as share option expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the year ended 31 March 2013. The Group
recognised the total expense of HK$10,093,000 for the year ended 3|
March 2013 (2012: HK$1,735,000) in relation to the share options granted.

The fair value of share options granted on 14 January 2013 was calculated
using Binomial Tree method (the “Method"). The inputs into the Method
were as follows:

Grant date share price HK$0.104
Exercise price HK$0.105
Expected volatility 51.27%
Expected life 3.78 years
Risk-free rate 0.8222%
Expected dividend yield 0%

8. UROBBER AR E)

DREEEBRETE(Z)
Bz_2—=ZFzZA=+—HL
FE 6364024800 BEIRBEE R =
E—=-F—A1+NERL -RZ_F
—ZF-AtTNERLEREEZ
B8 RR R AT A T B 49 £2571,000%8
T UYRAFEZEEZEEER
#iﬁﬁ&uu\ﬁﬁﬁhﬁésﬂi @i_
E——_f#=ZR=+— Eiir
3000000001‘%%1%55A
F-ATAARE -RZE—= ¢
_ﬂﬂ'/\ﬁ}rxtﬂz,ﬁﬁﬁx%ﬁﬁ
B4 &125100008 0 AEBRE
E_E-—=F=ZA=+—HItHF
BZRa2HBERTPEREF
8,332,000 TL(ZF — = : 1,735,000
AL AERERY HEZT—=
FZA=Z+—HLEFE X£EEE
Emﬂﬁhﬁ%k%ﬁﬁz 1 32
10,093,000/ TC(ZF—=4 : 1,735,000
/%TE)

RZE—=F—-A+NBMKILE
%%Z@$ﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁf
([ZEBERDFTE - ZER 28 AH
S UNNE

BRHBHRE 0.104/8 T
R 0.1057%& 7T
T8 HDR 18 51.27%
TRETF 5 3784
2 B Fl| 2= 0.8222%
TEHIR B & 0%
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28.

29.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted on 16 January 2012 was
calculated using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

Grant date stock price HK$0.12
Exercise price HK$0.10
Expected volatility 50.155%
Expected life 3 years
Risk-free rate 0.414%
Expected dividend yield 4.00%

Expected volatility was determined by using historical volatility of four
comparable companies with similar business at grant date. The expected
life used in the method has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

28.

29.

UROBER 2N

DRELEBRETE ()

RZE——F—-—A+BAELE
BEZAFEDE_BABETE
BRFE - ZBEA 2B ASBENT
R BHRE 0.2&TT
R 0.107% T
T8 HDR 18 50.155%
AT F 5 3F
&l B ) 2 0414%
HHREX 4.00%

BHERLERNEHBBEERE
FBZORXAELBRRAZELRK
FEE - ZEAMBARGFHER
TEEBRAAER  TER kX
RREZFEMERERHELRE -

KEHE

AEBEREREA

RWERR ARBRIUHEL
EHAFREZRRREREFIEE
HBWMT:

2013 2012

—EB-ZF —E2——-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FETT

Within one year —F R 27,350 13,688
In the second to fifth year F-_ZERE 23,009 9,230
50,359 22918

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office premises and shops. Leases are negotiated for one to
four years with fixed monthly rentals over the lease term. Certain leases
include contingent rentals calculated with reference to turnover of the
shops.
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30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme
is established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance since
December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme (capped at HK$ 1,000 per
month before May 2012 and HK$1,250 per month effective in June 2012),
which contribution is matched by employee.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a state-
managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC government.
The relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
state retirement schemes in the PRC based on certain percentage of the
monthly salaries of their current employees to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the specific contributions.

During the year, the employer’s contribution to the MPF Schemes and
various benefits schemes in the PRC is HK$528,000 (2012: HK$273,000)
and HK$4,244,000 (2012: HK$3,516,000) respectively.

The contributions made by the Group to the MPF Scheme and state
retirement schemes are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income when employees have rendered service to the
Group.

30. EBIKFERIGHE

FEEREREABAEBRERRE
Rl M REE () ﬁﬁf%H)

wiEeEHNEC ?22 +
FRREE S D ai#%%%%mo
FECEERARBYEESRE

B UYUAETAMZEH 2 ESE
B o A& B &R B A A 2 5% M)
BEETEELERRZE—ZF
AAREMZ ERES A 1,000 -
MRZE——FXARAEEA 125
A H{EE 2 HFER -

PEMBLRIZEEH2EDEK
REBEZERRBHTE  Z5HE
TEMBLARYEREAREAS
ZIEE A DT BB R R KA E
R A ABRHM- A&
B xRN EAGE 2 E—BER
fEHEEHRK -

REAFE BERBRESFTE R+
EZERAMAEMERTD A
52800078 jT( = & — = 4 : 273000
BIT) R42440008 L(ZF——F:
35160007 7T) °

AEER Eiﬁiﬂﬁl%ﬂﬁﬁr

ﬂ%%# KR & B R AR R B 1R 5
BEBHEA2EBERMR -
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEALER S
Compensation of key management personnel TEEEAEMS
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management EERHEMTIZEEEXRERAF
during the year was as follows: EZMemT :
2013 2012
—E-= —T-CF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER AR
Salaries and other benefits HeLEMER 9,576 5,990
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRTEM ET &I R 99 46
Share-based payments IR RER 2 13K 8,055 674
17,730 7,710
The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the EERTETBRABZME IEF
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of individuals MEEeRENEIXRARMGE
and market trends. BRTE °
32. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 2. BEHRSHE

On 18 April 2013, the Company announced that the Company entered into
placing agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent
has conditionally agreed with the Company to place 22,910,489 placing
shares at placing price of HK$0.54 per placing share.

On 19 April 2013, the Company granted an aggregate of | 1,455,244
share options to certain consultants to subscribe for the ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company under the New Scheme
with exercise price of HK$0.644 per share without any vesting condition,
in which the fair value of share options will be charged to profit or loss on
grant date.
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RZE—=FmWA+N\B " AAF
Efi ARAAREREITUREE
HE Bl BEERBEANAFA
G B R S BT REER{7054
BT E 22910489 AR BL & A% 17

R-_ZE—=ZFWMA+AB ' ARQA
A5 T B M % A £ 1145524417 B8
B UREHAEETEESR
0644 B TRBARARAFEHRA
BOIOB T2 E@BK BEXEMAM
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Issued and fully paid
ordinary share capital/

A

B R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE—Z—=F=A=1+—HILFE

33. ARRTEMB AR ZHE

registered and Attributable equity
contributed capital interest held
Place of ERTRMARE by the Grou
Name incorporation ZERKRA/ Z&% i 1‘; Principal activities
' ERATAY  BRRAARE BinARE 1Bk
2013 2012
ZE-=fF —“T-——F
Direct subsidiaries
EENEAT
Tack Fiori Intemational Group British VirginIslands | ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (Note a) (“BVI") US$I each BB
EEAREERRARA (M) RERLHS |REREE XL
([RBRX ERR
BS))
Indirect subsidiaries
HENELR
Tack Fiori Corporate Services Limited ~ Hong Kong | ordinary share of 100% 100%  Corporate administrative
) HK$! each services
|[REREEIBTT CETBRS
Real Victor Limited Hong Kong | ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEARAE BR HK$ each RERR
IEEREGIBT
LERK
ANEEEZREFRAA The PRC RMB28,000,000 100% 100%  Retal of apparels
(Note b) (FtEb) F7 AR % 280000007C RETE
BEEAGR)REERARA The PRC RMBI,000,000 - —  Retail of apparels
(HEHA]) Note d) (HizFd) P E AR H 10000007 REZTE
BERE(LR)BEAERAT The PRC HK$18,600,000 100% ~ Retal of apparels
(Noteb &) (HfzEb R c) Gl 18,600,000/ 7T RETE
The Sound Chamber Hongbang The PRC RMBI,000,000 100% 100%  Reta of audio and
Beiing Co, Ltd (Note b) i AR 10000007 Hi-Fi equipment
Wfr?ﬁﬁi& 2(tx) FERBTE
ERAR (i)
Tiret (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Retail of watch
BREEERAF R of HK$| each BRTE
10,000 & B il &
IR BB
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

33. RRFATENMBRARZHERE#E)

(Continued)
Issued and fully paid
ordinary share capital/
registered and Attributable equity
contrlbuted capltal interest held
Place of E&fT %therog
Name incorporation EBR EQZF/ SEfK Principal activities
2R ERATAY  BRRAARA BhRARE  FEEE
2013 2012
ZE-=fF -“T-——F
Time Window Limited Hong Kong 300,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Retal of watch
& of HK$! each BHTE
300000 B R E B
1B &R
TF Treasury Activities Limited BVI | ordinary share 100% 100%  Securtties trading and
HEROHE of US$! each investment
|BEREE XL EFEERKE
£
Rainbow Pharmacy Co. Limited Hong Kong | ordinary share 100% 100%  Pharmacy and healthcare
B of HKS each products retail business
BEREEIET YERRRERTE
ZERR 3
Brune Blonde Limited Hong Kong | ordinary share 100% 100%  Salon and beauty services
g of HK$ I each business
BERERIET sEEETR
TRk XBRBES

Note: P 5

a  The subsidiary was directly held by the Company. a  HWBAREARAIBEERA -

b The companies were established as wholly foreign owned enterprise under laws of the b  ZELARBRBEPKLAING B
PRC. BhE-

c The companies were established during the year ended 31 March 2013. c ZEDNARE §: —E—-=%=AH

=+ —RIEFERL-

d The Company does not have equity interest in the registered capital of ¥ 55 8 17 as d ¥ ANAREFERNZ Eﬂﬂ BRI
it is owned by employees of the Group. Pursuant to certain agreements entered into BERARS RRBZARIHAASK
between the owners of % 5 B /7 and the Group, the owners of & 55 /] agreed EEEH ﬁ CREHERNEEAR
to assign the power to appoint and remove all the members of the board of directors % EEMITUZETH % CHEEAN
of and to govem the financial and operating policies of & 55 K /1 to the Group and BAEARERAASEBEZIRER
to transfer all beneficial interests of B 55 & 77 to the Group. Accordingly, B & & MEESSENENREETER N
77 is treated as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and its results, assets and ) fﬁ REERRZEN  WRAFE
liabilities are consolidated with those of the Group. BERHEER N 2B ERER A lit

HFERNEEAEARZ2ENBR
HEE - ﬁ%&’é%ﬁé$%ﬁé\)\%§ z
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities in issue at any time during
the vears ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

33.

ARRATENBLAZHFE @

MEMNBLARANREE-_ZT—=FR
ZE-ZHE=A=+—-BLEFER
EAREETEMREES

TRIMESRRIBHAERR
BERTELAENAKEEANRD
BEFEZADANBAR -ES
RE HIEMCHBRARZFES
EYRBEBRITE -
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Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=+—-HLEFE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f T —T——F ZT-TF ZTTHhF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FET FET FHET
RESULTS E¥
Turmnover BER 33,339 56,516 53,694 55,648 107,684
(Loss) profit before tax BR AT (B 18)
% F (125,987) 1,293,605 (92,745) (56,967) (37,315)
Income tax credit e fiE %
(expense) (AX) - —~ 564 (1954) (49.815)
(Loss) profit for the year N4 Z (E518)
il (125,987) 1,293,605 (91,181) (58921) (87,130)
Attributable to: AT AT :
Owners of the Company AR AHEA A (125,987) 1,293,771 (93,138) (59,239) (97,162)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE4% i% # 2 = (166) | 957 318 10,032
(125,987) 1,293,605 ©1,181) (58921) (87,130)
As at 3| March
R=A=+-—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f —T-F ZT——F ZT-TF ZTTHhF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FET FET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BER & &
Total assets EERE 177,624 199,027 58,845 52,424 66,187
Total liabilities BERE (35,218) (34644)  (1446470)  (1,349070)  (1,317,001)
142,406 164,383 (1387,625)  (1296646)  (1,250,814)
Equity attributable to ARAERA
owners of the Company  JE{G % 142,406 164,383 (1434740)  (1341804)  (1,295,654)
Non-controlling interest FEPE AR HE 2 - - 47,115 45,158 44,840
142,406 164,383 (1387625  (1296646)  (1,250,814)
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Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end

RBEEHR ARBFHRRAK 2 EH

of the reporting period includes: BIE
2013 2012
—E-=-f —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Unlisted investment in a subsidiary R—ZMBRAZFLMERE -
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B /B8 A B ;A 166,011 5342
Other receivables H {th E UG TR 18 |14 195
Bank and cash balances RIT KRR R 33,487 99,782
Total assets EEHE 199,612 153,397
Less: current liabilities — trade and other payables &, : BB E — BN E 5 K E 518 (1,149) (1,207)
Net assets EEZRE 198,463 152,190
Capital and reserves N
Share capital (see note 27) B (R EE27) 1,455 318,201
Reserves #k 187,008 (166,011)
Total equity ERAE 198,463 152,190
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Movement of the Company’s reserve are disclosed as follows:

ARAlREC BB RENT

Convertible Share
bond equity option Share  Contributed Other  Accumulated
reserve reserve premium surplus reserve losses Total
TgR
B5ER BRE
i #E ROEE BARH HeRE RiER st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TR TR TERT TAER TAER TAER
At | Apnil 201 | RZE——F
mA—A = = 660,127 167,780 - (2091990)  (1,264,083)
Profit for the year REREN - - - - — 1096009 1096009
Recognition of equity-settled PR DA MR 1 45 5 1A
share-based payment B BEB AT - 1,735 - - - - 1,735
Recognition of equity components RABRER
of convertible bond REHD 28714 - - - - - 28714
Conversion of convertible bonds HAnBEES (28714) = | 477 = = = (27,37)
Transaction cost attributable to issue BEITROEMN
of shares TR = = (1,149) = = = (1,149)
At 31 March 2012 RZE—ZF
=f=+-A - 1735 660455 167780 ~(9%.981)  (166011)
Loss for the year KEEER = - = = = (57,672) (57,672)
Issue of new shares under placement BEEEETHRG - - 9,546 - - - 9,546
Issue of new shares under rights issue REERETHRAG - - 76,368 - - - 76,368
Transaction cost attributable EITRG EME
to issue of shares RHBA - - (4,009) - - - (4,009)
Issue of shares upon exercise TR ERERET
of share options & fh - (2,571) 6,046 = 2,571 = 6,046
Capital reduction BRER - - - - - 311,837 311,837
Recognition of equity-settled 7R DA R 45 B DA
share-based payment R RER R - 10,903 - - - - 10,903
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F
=A=+—H = 10,067 748,406 167,780 2,571 (741,816) 187,008
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